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BOARD’S REPORT

The Members of the Company,

Your Directors present the 60" Annual Report and Audited Financial Statement of the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2025.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The financial results of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25 as compared with the previous

year are as under:
(Rs. in Thousands)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from Operations 2,75,727.53 5,34,470.47
Other Income 3,282.29 4,221.99
Total 2,79,009.82 5,38,692.46
Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items (1,78,614.38) (2,55,981.55)
and tax
Exceptional items 17,722.80 -
Tax Expense (632.15) 13,265.95
Profit /(Loss) for the period (1,96,969.33) (2,42,715.60)
Other Comprehensive Income (852.95) (122.26)
fSurplus iq Profit & Loss Account brought (1,265,992.99) (1,023,155.13)
rom previous year
Depreciation and amortization expense 15,177.89 15,047.36
Available surplus (14,63,815.27) (1,265,992.99)

STATEMENT OF AFFAIRS

During the year, nearly 35% of the orders were booked involving machining, which helped the
Company in better sales realization. Price escalation/revisions were undertaken to the existing orders
during the year which resulted into increased revenue. Cost reduction initiatives were taken at various
stages reducing consumables cost and overall manufacturing cost. Voluntary Retirement Scheme
(VRS) was also launched which gave an advantage of reduction of overall Employee Related
Expenses. Radiographic Testing facility utilization was greater than 70% during the year, indicating
better business opportunities during the next year.
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During the year, the Board in its meeting held on October 15, 2024, has granted approval to the
Amalgamation of of the Company with Karad Projects and Motors Limited, the holding company, and
their respective shareholders (“the Scheme”). The appointed date fixed for this scheme is October 3,
2024. The application for the same was filed with the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench
(“NCLT”) by the Company on October 30, 2024 for its consideration and approval. NCLT passed an
Order on January 29, 2025 dispensing the holding of Equity Shareholders and Secured Creditors of
the Company. On 19 March 2025, the petition has been filed with NCLT. On approval of the Scheme
by NCLT, both the companies would be able to optimize their returns, leverage individual strengths
and achieve their strategic objectives.

During the year, the Registered Office of the Company was shifted from Pune-Bangalore Highway
Shiroli (Pulachi) Taluka- Hatkanangale, Kolhapur- 416 122 to Yamuna, Survey No. 98/ (3 to 7), Plot
No. 3, Baner, Pune 411045 w.e.f. November 1, 2024.

DIVIDEND

Due to financial position of the Company, no dividend is recommended for the Financial Year ended
on March 31, 2025.

RESERVES

No amount is proposed to be carried to any reserves.

STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

Annual Return:

As per the provisions of Section 92(3) read with Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act),
the Annual Return of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025 is placed on the
website of the Company at http://www.kolhapursteel.com/we-are-tksl-investors.aspx.

Board Meetings:

Seven Board Meetings were held during the year on April 19, 2024, June 27, 2024, July 17, 2024,
August 16, 2024, October 15, 2024, January 15, 2025 and February 21, 2025.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement
Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) of the Act, the Board of Directors report that:

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;
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b) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the loss of the Company
for that period;

c) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) The Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that
such controls are adequate operating effectively; and

fy The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Disclosure under Section 134(3)(e):

As the Company is not covered under sub-section (1) of Section 178 of the Act, there is nothing to
report under this heading.

Report of Auditors:

During the Financial Year under review, there is no qualification, reservation or adverse remarks or
disclaimer made by the Statutory Auditors of the Company in their Audit Report.

During the year under review, there were no frauds reported by Auditors under Section 143 (12) of
the Act.

The requirement of annexing secretarial audit report to the Board’s Report, is not applicable to the
Company.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

Pursuant to the approval of shareholders, the Company made an investment of Rs.90,18,768 by
subscribing to 7,068 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs. 1,266/- per share of Sunsure
Solarpark Nineteen Private Limited, during the year under review.
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Except as mentioned above, no loans were given, investments made, guarantees given or security
provided by the Company, under the provisions of Section 186 of the Act, during the year under
review.

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties

During the year under review, no material transactions were entered with related parties requiring
disclosure in this report under sub-section (2) of Section 188 of the Act.

Material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the company which have
occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the financial statements
relate and date of the report

There is nothing to report under this head.
Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The details of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo
are given in Annexure |.

Business Risk Management:

Senior Management team periodically reviews the working conditions affecting the Company and
reports the same to the Board. In the opinion of the Board, none of the identified risks threaten the
existence of the Company.

Corporate Social Responsibility Report:
The provisions of Section 135 of the Act read with Schedule VIl are not applicable to the Company.

Board Evaluation:

The Board has formulated Board Evaluation Policy for evaluation of individual directors as well as the
entire Board for its performance and that of its committees thereof. The evaluation framework is
divided into parameters based on the various performance criteria to be done annually. The
evaluation for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2025 has been completed.

The Board Evaluation Policy of the Company is available on the website of the Company on following
link: www.kolhapursteel.com/pdf/BoardEvaluationPolicy.
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OTHER STATUTORY DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED UNDER RULE 8(5) OF THE COMPANIES
(ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014

(i) Financial summary/highlights are already included elsewhere in this Report.
(ii) Change in the nature of the business

There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company, during the year under
review.

(iii) Appointments / Resignations of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

During the year under review, Mr. Ravish Mittal ceased to be the director of the Company due to
his resignation from the Board w.e.f. February 28, 2025.

Mr. Avinash Yadav ceased to be the Chief Financial Officer of the Company w.e.f. December 24,
2024, due to the resignation.

Mr. Ananta Das has been appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company w.e.f. April 21,
2025.

(ilia) The requirement of appointment of Independent Director, is not applicable to the Company.
(iv) Subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies

The Company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate. During the year under
review, no company became a subsidiary, associate or joint venture company.

(v) Deposits
Your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 2(31) of the Act
read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 and as such, the information

relating to deposits is not applicable.

(vi) Details of Significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Court or Tribunals
impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future

No such orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going
concern status and Company’s operations in future.
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(vii)

Details in respect of adequacy of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial
Statement

The Company has Internal Financial Control Systems which are commensurate with the size,
scale, nature and complexity of its operations. Corporate Internal Audit Department (CIA) of
Kirloskar Brothers Limited were appointed as Internal Auditors for Financial Year 2024-25. Based
on the report of Internal Auditors the Company undertakes corrective actions and further
strengthens the controls. Significant audit observations and corrective actions thereon are
presented to the Board.

(viii) Maintenance of cost records

(ix)

()

(i)

The Company is required to maintain the cost records as specified by the Central Government
under Section 148(1) of the Act and accordingly such accounts and records are being made and
maintained.

Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints
Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013.

In terms of Section 22 of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013, read with Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Rules 2013, the report for the year ended on March 31, 2025, is as
follows:

No. of complaints received in the year Nil
No. of complaints disposed of in the year Nil
Cases pending for more than 90 days Nil

No. of workshops and awareness programmes
conducted in the year
Nature of action by employer or District Officer, if any Nil

01

The details of application made or any proceedings pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code,2016 (31 of 2016) during the year along with their status as at the end of
the Financial Year: NIL

The details of difference between amount of valuation done at the time of one-time
settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from Banks or Financial Institutions
along with the reasons thereof: NIL
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OTHER DISCLOSURES REQUIRED UNDER COMPANIES ACT, 2013:
Composition of Audit Committee:

As required under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has constituted the Audit
Committee comprising of following Directors:

Mr. K. Taranath -Chairman
Mr. Achyut Dhadphale -Member
Mr. Suresh B. Deshpande -Member

Particulars of Employees:

The requirement to publish information as prescribed under Rule 5 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is not applicable to the
Company.

Holding Company:
The Company was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kirloskar Brothers Limited upto September 30,
2024. The Company became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Karad Projects and Motors Limited
w.e.f. October 01, 2024.

DISCLOSURE AS PER SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

Your Board of Directors confirm the compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards for the
Financial Year under review.

CASH FLOW

A Cash Flow Statement for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2025 forms part of the Financial
Statement attached to this Report.

SAFETY, HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT:

e Your manufacturing plant is certified for the Environment Management System (ISO 14001:2015).
Regular internal audits at manufacturing plant make sure that the Company adheres to all legal
requirements related to ISO 14001:2015.

¢ In addition to the external and internal audits, our plant is audited by a Safety team from another
plant to check our Environmental, Health, and Safety (EHS) compliance and following standard
safety practices.
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To encourage a strong safety culture among all employees, involvement of the top management
is ensured. Senior managers take monthly Plant Safety Rounds to show their commitment to
improving our safety culture. Employees also participate through a Yellow Tag System (SaY) to
raise their concerns related to safety. Team of safety stewards for a department to ensures safety
at the work place.

286 incidents of unsafe actions and conditions have been recorded at the workplace through
various reporting initiatives, and 90.90% of these incidents have been addressed. This has
helped the Company to reduce unsafe actions and conditions in our workplace.

Measuring plant safety performance system has been introduced, considering both leading and
lagging indicators.

Events like National Safety Week, World Environment Day, Fire Safety Day, and Road Safety Day
are celebrated to raise awareness among employees and encourage a safety culture.

Together with Kamgar Kaylan Mandal, First Aid training is provided to the employees. This
training gives them the skills they need to handle medical emergencies effectively. Safety
committee meetings are being held every month with employees as well as with the staff to
discuss safety issues, review safety protocols, and strengthen the safety culture.

As a result of all these efforts, the Company has achieved 305 working days without reportable
accidents as of 31% March, 2025.

AUDITORS:

M/s. Sharp & Tannan Associates - Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 109983W) were
appointed as statutory auditors of the Company at the 59" Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) for a
period of 5 years till the conclusion of 64™ AGM.
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[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and

Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain
arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto:

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

Name(s) of |Nature of |Duration of (Salient terms |Justificatio Date(s) of |Amount paidDate on
the related |contracts/ |the of the n for approval by |as which the
party and |arrangemen|contracts / |contracts or |entering ([the Board [|advances, if resolution
nature of ts/ arrangementjarrangements |into such any was passed
relationship transaction |/ contracts .

S transactions ° . in ge.neral
transactions |or meeting as
including the |arrangeme required
value, if any |nts or under first

transaction proviso
N to Section
188
- NIL -

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

Name(s) of

the related
party and
nature of

relationship

Nature of
contracts/arr
angements/tr

ansactions

Duration of the
contracts/arrangem
ents/transactions

Salient terms
of the contracts
or arrangement
or transactions

including the

value, if any.

Justification for
entering into
such contracts
or
arrangements
or transaction

Amount
paid as
advances,
if any.

-NIL-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the members of THE KOLHAPUR STEEL LIMITED

Report on the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of The Kolhapur $Steel Limited
(hereinafter referred as "the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, the
statement of profit and ioss {including other comprehensive income), the cash flow statement and
the statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date and notes to the standalone
financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred Lo as “the financial statements”).

In qur opinion and te the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(hereinafter referred as “the Act"} in the manner so reqguired and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended (hereinafter referred as "ind
AS") and other accounting principlos generaily accepted in India, of the state of affairs (financial
position) of the Company as al 31 March 2025, and its loss (finencial performance including other
comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (hereinafter referred as "SAs") specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Cur
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibijities for the
audit of the standalone financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of
India ("ICAI"} together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical respensibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note No. 45 of the standalone financial statements which indicates that the
Company’s net worth has got eroded as of March 31, 2025 and the Company's current liabilities
exceeded its current assets. These conditions, along with other matters as stated in said note,

indicate that a material uncertainly exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to

continue as a going concern,
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Based on our discussions with the management of the Company as well as the Ultimate Holding
Company (Kirloskar Brothers Limited) is fully committed to support the Company to meet all its
financial fiabilities and in this regard the management of the Ultimate Holding Company has issued a
comfort/support fetter,

Our opinion is not modified with respect of this above matter.
Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to note no. 46(a) to the standalone financial statements, which describes that the
Company is in the process of merging with the Karad Projects and Motors Limited. This proposed
merger scheme is subject to all applicable statulory and regulatory approvals.

Cur opinion is not modified with respect of this above matter.

Other matter

The standalone financial statements include financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
which were audited by the predecessor auditer and they had expressed an unmodified audit opinion
thereon vide their reporl dated 19 April, 2024,

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this other matter.
information other than the standalone financial statements and auditor's report thereon

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are respornsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the Board's report and management discussion and
analysis included in the annual report but does not include the standalone financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon.

Cur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financiat statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during
the course of our audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s and Board of Director's responsibilities for the standalone financial statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standaione financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, cash flows and changes in equity
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, inciuding
the Ind AS. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adeguate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
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implementation and maintenance of adeqguate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the standalone financial statements, Company’s Management and Board of Directors
are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as & going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting uniess
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial statements

Our objectives are o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

A tdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

B. Obtain an understanding of internal control refevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

C. Evaiuate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

D. Conciude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether s material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in ocur
auditor’s report to the relaled disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Cur conclusions are based on the audit
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evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease {o continue as a going concern.

E. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probabie that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in {i) planning the scope of our audit woerk and in
evaluating the results of our work; and {il) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in
the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1 Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the central
government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
"Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and & of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by section 143 (3) of the Act and based on our audit, we report that:

ay We have sought and obtained ali the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b} Inouropinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company sc
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c)  The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income),
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid standalone financiat statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

el On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2025
taken onrecord by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

f)  With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure B" our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting;
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g)  Withrespect to the other matters to be included in the auditor's report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16} of the Act, as amended, we report that in our opinion and to
the best of cur information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 of the Act; and

h)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the auditor's reportin accordance with rule
1 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2004, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according 1o the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2025 on its
financial position in its standalone financial statements - refer note no. 29 to the standalone
financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foresecable losses as at 31 March 2025,

ifi. There were no amounts which were required to be fransferred to the investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 20725,

iv. Reporting on rule 13(e):

() The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
stated in note no. 41(h)1), no funds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behaif of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
stated in note no. 41(h)(2), no funds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person{s) or entity(jes),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficlaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(c) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i} of rule 1i(e), as
provided under {a} and {b) above, contain any materiai misstatement.

nan
et 4y

(YN
ﬁj Regn.No.

oA ANDDERUY
| IR A

ki ¥
\/_

TKSL AR 31 March 2025 Page 5 0of 12



v. BDuring the previous year, the Company has not declared/paid dividend. Accordingly,
reporting under section 123 of the Act is not applicable.

vi. Based on our examination which inciuded test checks, except for instances mentioned
below, the Company, has used an accounting software, for maintaining its books ofaccount
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant fransactions recorded in the software. Further, during
our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.
Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention, other than the consequential impact of exceptions
menticned below (Refer note no. 42 to the standalone financial statements);

A) In respect of an accounting software - The audit trail feature was not enabied at the
database level to log any direct data changes.

B) Inrespectof maintenance of register for property, plant and equipment and inventory
valuation of WIP is maintained in MS excel wherein it does not have audit trail feature.

C) In respect of HMuman Resource Management System (HRMS) - the Company uses
services of a third-party service provider for salary processing and in the absence of
Service Organisation Control Type 2 Report/iSAE 3402, "Assurance Reports on
Control at a Service Organisation”, specificaily covéring the maintenance of audit trail,
we are unabie to comment whether audit trail feature of the said software was enabfed
and operated throughout the year for ail relevant transactions recorded in the software
or whether there were any instances of the audit trail feature been tampered with.

For Sharp & Tannan Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration no. 109983W
by the hand of

W
CA Pramod Bhise '

Partner

Membership no.(F)} 047751

UDIN: 25047751BMKXAMU3IL]

Pune, 27 April 2025
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paregraph 1 under the heading, "Report on Other tegal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report on even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company
and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of auditl, we state that:

(y  Aa)

(b)

{c)

(d)

(e)

Gy - (a)

(b)

(i - (a)

(A} The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B} The Company is maintaining proper records showing fuill particulars of intangible
assets.

The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management
at reguiar intervals based on the programme of verification in a phased manner which
in our opinion is reasonable. No material discrepancies were noticed during such
physical verification conducted by the Company during the year.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties {other than properties where the
Company is the lessee, and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee) disclosed in the standalone financial stalements are held in the name of the
Company. '

The Company has neither revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right
of Use assets) nor intangible assets during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
paragraph 3(i)d) of the Order is not applicable.

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(i}(e) of
the Crder is not applicable.

Physical verification of inventory, except goods-in-transit has been conducted at
reasonable intervals by the management and in our opinion the coverage and
procedure of such verification is appropriate. Discrepancies noticed on physical
verification were less than 10% in the aggregate for each class of inventory and the
same have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees
during the year, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets.
The management of the Company has provided us with the quarterly returns or
statements, which they have represented to us have been filed by the Company with
their banks. These quarterly returns/ statements are in agreement or have heen
reconciled with the books of account. Further it was explained that the compilation of
quarterly return for March 2025 was under process.

The Company has not provided any guarantee, security or granted any secured loans
or secured or unsecured advances in the nature of loans, to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or any other parties during the year. The Company has made
investment in company and has not made investment to firms, limited liability
partnerships or any other parties during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
paragraph 3 Clause (iii) (a), (¢}, (d), (&) and (f) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company,

TKSL AR 31 March 2025
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{iv)

{v)

(vi)

(vii)

(b) The investments made, during the year are not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013,
in respect of the investments made including obtaining the approval of shareholders Dy
way of a special resolution. The Company has not granted any loans or provided any
guarantees or securities during the year, and hence the provisions of Section 185 and other
applicable provisions of Section 186 in this regard are not applicable.

The Company has not accepted deposiis or deemed deposits to which the directives issued
by the Reserve Bank of india and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules
framed there under, are applicable. Accordingly, reporting under para 3(v) is not
applicable.

The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost recerds under section 148(1) of
the Act. We have broadly reviewed these records relating to materiais, labour and other
items of cost maintained by the Company and are of the opinion that, prima facie; the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained, We have not however
made a detailed examination of records with a view to determine whether they are accurate
and complete,

In respect of statutory dues:

(@) The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax,
value added tax, cess, and any other statutory dues, as applicable, to the appropriate
authorities. There are no arrears of statutory dues outstanding as on the tast day of the
financial year concerned for a pericd of more than six months from the date, they
became payable,

(b} The details of statutory dues referred to in sub- paragraph (a) above which have not
been deposited with the concerned authorities as on 31 March, 2025, on account of
dispute are given below:;

Amount Amount Period to
. Forum where
Name of Nature of involved unpaid which . .
‘ Dispute is
Statute dues 4 3 amount Pendi
thousands thousands Relates ending
Central Central Excise
ra
Central Een. 1986-87 and | and  Service
ise
Excise Act, Dxct 1,092.47 550.26 | 2002-03 | Tax, Appeliate
Goods and Apeal filed
Servic GST o before
ervices 1,336.40 | 1,336.40 | FY 2017-18 o
Tax Act, commissioner
2017 central tax
Goods and Apeal filed
Services FY 2017-18 before
GS 2,574.62 2,491,
Tax Act, 7 2746 ’ 02 and FY 18-19 | commissioner
Total o ; 5'003:&? 4,377.68 {”:T'\?lm;ﬁ ;o

) e
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(viii} The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as
income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income tax act, 1961 as
income during the year. Accordingly, reporting under para 3{(viii) is not applicable.

{ix) (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender. Accordingly, reporting under para 3(ix)(a)
is not applicable.

(b) We report that the Company has not been declared as wiliful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or other lender. Accordingly, reporting under para 3(ix}b) is not
applicable.

(c) The term lcan were applied for the purpose for which the term loans were obtained.

(d) Funds raised on short term basis have not been utilised for long term purposes.
Accordingly, reporting under para 3(ix}{d) is not applicable.

(e) The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures, Accordingly,
reporting under para 3(ix){e) is not applicable.

(f} The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Accordingly, reporting under
para 3(ix)(f} is not applicable.

(x)  (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, reporting on para 3(x)a) is not
applicable.

(b} The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year.
Accordingly, reporting on para 3(x)b) is not applicable.

(xi) (a8) No fraud by the Company or any material fraud on the Company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section {12) of section 143 of the Companies Act
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies
{Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) No whistle blower complaints received by the company during the year.

(xii)  The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, reporting on para 3(xii) of the order is
not applicable.

{xiii} Al transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the
Act, wherever applicable, and the details have been disciosed in the standalone financial
statements as reguired by the applicable IND AS. (Refer note no. 34 to the standalone
financial statement.)

(xiv) (a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of
its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports issued during the year and pertaining
to the year under audit.

(xv) The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence pl'ovésm{%iqg‘segtiosw 192 of the Companies Act,
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2013 are not applicable to the company. Accordingly, reporting on para 3(xv) of the order
is not applicable.

(xvi) (a) TheCompany isnotrequired to be registered under Section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934, Accordingly, reporting on para 3{xvi)(a) is not applicable.

(b} The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of
India as per the Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934, Accordingly, reporting on para
IxviXb) is not applicable.

(¢} The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, reporting on para 3{xvi)(c) of the
order is not appiicable,

{d} The group does not have CIC as part of the group. Accordingly, reporting on para
3(xvidd) of the order is not applicabte.

(xvii} The Company has incurred cash iosses of ¥ 1,70,001.34 thousands in the current financial
year and ¥ 2,25 547.04 thousands in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly,
reporting on para 3(xviii) of the order is not applicable.

{xix} On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on
our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. However, the Ultimate Holding Company has given, comfort
letter for extending support in meetings its liabilities/obligations existed at balance sheet
date and when they fall due. Refer para “Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” in
our Independent Auditors Report.

(xx) (a) There is no unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other
than ongeing projects required a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule Vil to the
companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub section {5) of section 135 of
the Act. Accordingly, reporting on para 3(xx){a) of the order is not applicable.

(b) There is no unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) in respect
of ongeoing projects reguiring a transfer to a special account in compliance with sub-
section (&) of section 135 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting on para 30x)bh) of the
order is not applicable.

For Sharp & Tannan Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration no, 109983W
by the dof

‘ Partner
Membership no {F) 047751
UDIN: 25047 751BMKXAM4ILE

Pune, 21 April 2025
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report

Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading, "Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report on even date:

Report on the Internal Financial Controls
[under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)]
Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of The Kolhapur Steel Limited
{hereinafter referred as “the Company”) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Compeany has, in ali material respects, an adeguate internal financial controis system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at 31 March 2025, based on the internal financial controf over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential compenents of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (hereinafter referred as "the
guidance note"} issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india {(hereinafter referred as
“HCAL).

Managements and Board of Directors responsibility for internal financial controls

The Company’'s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
guidance note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Act.

Auditor's responsibhility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financiat controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the guidance note and the
Standards on Auditing issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical reguirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internat financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

[ Regn.No.

030\\’%\09983\!:\!/;

2 'S
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Cur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls cver financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal contro! based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system aver financial reporting.

Meaning of internal financial controls over financial reporting

A Company's internat financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
standalone financia! statements for external purposes in accordance with generslly accepted
accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, In reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unautherized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controis over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internai financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

. For Sharp & Tannan Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration no. 109883W

by the hand of
Regn.No.
109983W .
CA Pramod Bhise
Partner
, Membership no.(F) 047751
Pune, 21 Aprif 2025 S UDIN: 25047751BMKXAMAZ4L3
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The Kothapur Steei Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025

{Amounts in Thousand Rupees)

As at As at

Particulars Notes 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 1.98,686.68 2,13,264.03
Right of Use Assets 3 1,231.61 1,510.31
Other Intangible assets 3 232.18 282.61
Intangible assets Under Development 3 - 130.00
Financial Assets
Investments 4 9,018.77 -
Others 8 3,961.28 3,073.27
Deferred tax assets (net) 19 17.869.92 18,215.20
Other non-current assets 7 3,006.40 2,907.35
Total non-current assets 2,34,006.84 2,39,382.77
Current assets
Inventories 8 1,48,648.93 1,02,833.94
Financial Assets
Trade receivables 5 38,656.20 63,478.73
Cash and cash equivalenis e 53.63 4,204.47
Other current assets 10 96,115.06 99,379.25
Asset Held for Sale 11 53,003.77 63,003.77
Total current assefs 3,36,567.59 3,22.990.16
TOTAL ASSETS 5,70,574.43 5,62,372.93
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 12 4,17,000.00 3,42,000.00
Other equity 13 (14,53,462.35) (11,80,640.07)
Total equity {10,36,462.35)| (8,38,640.07)
LJABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 14 44 977.28 1,12,050.50
Lease Liabifity 15 1,114.79 1,377.88
Provisions 17 22,837.60 28,521.96
Other non-current liabilities 18 1,37,000.00 1,37,000.00
Total non-current liabilities 2,05,929.67 | 2,78,950.34
Current tiabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 14 3,92,776.32 1,37,216.40
Lease Liability 15 263,10 239.11
Trade payables
- Dues of Micro and Small Enterprises 16 10,882.36 42,985.46
- Dues of other than Micro and Small Enterprises 16 8,55,457 .55 7.63,569.00
Other financial liabilities 15 39,936.93 30,785.73
Provisions 17 10,244.11 10,964.21
Other current liabilities 18 91,546.74 1,36,302.75
Total current liabilities 14,01,107.11 11,22,062.66
Total liabilities 16,07,036.78 | 14,01,013.00
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES §,70,674.43 5,62,372.93
Corporate Information 1
Summary of Material Accounting policies 2
See accompanying notes to financial statements 3-46
'l“he n?tes referred to above form an integral part of the For and on behaif of the Board of Director
financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For SHARP & TANNAN ASSOCIATES . @/ L2
Chartered Accountants y -
FRN-10 W Rajkumar Assudani Ravindra Samant

Director
DIN:07002226

Managing Director
DIN:10254310

Lpes

framod Bhis —

Gaurav Deshmukh v
Company Secretary
Date: April 21, 2025

Partner '
Membership No. (F) - 047751
Place - Pune

Date: Aprit 21, 2025

Ananta Das
Chief Finance Officer
Date: April 21, 2025




The Kolhapur Steel Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2025

{Amounts in Thousand Rupees)

Year ended Year ended

Particulars Notes | 44 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue from Operations 20 2,75,727.53 5,34,470.47
Other Income 21 3,282.29 4,221.99
Total income 2,79,009.82 5,38,692.46
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 22a 1,55,012.63 2,99,820.88
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 22h 6,104.30 4,178.00
Changes In inventories of finished goods, Stock-in -Trade and work-in- 23 (50,264.66) 46,383.29
progress
Employee benefits expense 24 91,750.34 1,02,115.52
Finance costs 25 48,958.45 6165517
Depreciation and amortization expense 26 16,177.89 15,047.36
Other expenses a7 1,90,885.25 2,65473.79
Total expenses 4,57,624.20 7,94,674.01
Profit/{iossibefore exceptional items and tax {1,78,614.38) {2,55,981.55)
Exceptional items : Refer note 41 (1) 17,722.80 -
Profit / {{oss) before tax {1,96,337.18) (2,55,981.55)
Tax expenses
(1) Current tax
(2) Deferred tax 19 {632.15) 13,265.95
(3) Short provision of earlier years - -
Total Tax expenses {632.15) 13,265.95
Profit/{loss) for the year (1,96,969.33) (2,42,715.60)
Other Comprehensive Income 28
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or (loss) (1,139.82) (163.38)
Income tax relating fo iterns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 286.87 41.12
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss -
income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax {852.95) {122.26)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year {1,97,822.28} {2,42,837.86)
Earnings per equity share 32
(1) Basic (5,190.23) (7,096.95)
(2) Diluted {5,190.23) (7,096.95)
Corporate Information 1
Summary of Material Accounting policies 2
See accompanying notes to financial statements 3-46

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial
statements
As per our report of even date attached

For SHARP & TANNAN ASSQCIATES

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Yero

Chartered Accountants

FRN- 109983W Rajkumar Assudani Ravindra Samant

Managing Director Director

DIN:10254310 DIN:OT002226
Pramod Bhise | @Wtﬂﬁ é sl ledy .,
Place - Pune Y e e
Membership No. {F) - 047751 - . Ananta Das Gaurav Deshmukh
Pune : (/%L Chief Finance Officer Company Secretary

Date: April 21, 2025 Date: April 21, 2025

Date: April 21, 2025



The Kolhapur Steel Limited
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2025

{Amounts in Thousand Rupees)

Sr Particulars Year ended Year ended
No 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
AlCash flows from Operating Activities
Net profil /{loss) before tax {1,96,337.18) {2.55,981.55}
Adjustments for -
1 | Depreciation / Amortization 15,177.89 15,047.36
2 | Fixed Assets written off and reversal of impairment - 163.99
3 | Profit on sale of Fixed Assets {2.50} (1,230.49)
4 | Bad debts written off 18.95 566.01
5 | Provision for doubtfuf debts, advances and claims 11,790.08 -
6 | interest income (126.00) {B.63)
7 | Interest Expenses 45,241.70 5745574
8 | Interest Expenses - Lease 144.89 166.70
9 | Excess Provision wrilten back (4.65) {634.42)
Operating Profit Before Working capital changes {1,24,056.82) (1,84,455.30)
Adjustments for :-
1 | (Increase¥ decrease in invenlories (45,814 .99} 58,259.18
2 | (Increase) decrease in trade receivables 13,013.51 {30,620.46)
3 | (Increase) decrease in financial assets {888.01) {1,635.36)
4 | {Increase) decrease in non-financial assets 3,266.21 (59,412.47)
5 { Increase/ {decrease) in trade payable 59,785.45 2,56 57561
6 § Increase/ {decrease) in financial liabilities 10,820.77 4.781.14
7 { Increase/ {decrease) in non-financial liabilities {44,756.00) 53,537.13
8 1 Increase/ (decrease) in provisions {7.539.63) 1.788.66
Cash Generated from Operations {$,36,109.53) 98,818.13
9 | Income Tax (Paid) / Refunded net of provision 1,543.33 {1,633.87)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities {1,34,566.20} 97,284.26
B | Cash flows from Investing Activities
1 | Purchase of properly, plant and equipment and intangible assets (3,555.36) (6,00%.71}
2 | Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 2.50 1,230.50
3t Long Term Investment {9.018.77) -
4 | Interest Recelved 126.00 8.63
5 | Advance against sale of land - 1,37,000.00
Net Cash Flow from Investment Activities {12,445.63) 1,32,237.42
€ | Cash flows from Financing Activities
1§ Repayment of borrowings {86,513.31) {2,17,523.62}
2t Proceeds from borrowing 2,75,006.00 50,000.00
3 | Payment of lease liabitities (384.00) {384.00)
4 | interest Paid (45,241.70) {57.465.74)
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities 1,42,860.99 {2,25,373.36)
Net Increasel/(decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (4,150.84) 4,148.32
1 { Cash & Cash Equivalents at beginning of year 4,204.47 56.15
2 | Cash & Cash Equivalents at end of the year {refer note 9} 53.63 4,204.47
Note :- 1. Previous year's figures are regrouped wherever necessary to make them comparable with the Current Year.

2. Cash flow is prepared using "indirect method" as per ind AS 7.

As per our report of even date attached

For SHARP & TANNAN ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Bggrd of pPirectors
Chartered Accountants E
FRN- 109983W )/ 7
Rejkumar Assudani Ravindra Samant
Managing Director Director

DIN:10254310 DIN:07002226

A
Lprontic Cgewx.
Ananta Das Gaurav D U .

Chief Finance Officer Company Secretary
Date: April 21, 2025 Date: April 24, 2025

Pramod Biis
Partner
Membership No, (F) - 047751
Place - Pune

Date: April 21, 2025




The Kothapur Steet Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended 31 March 2025

(Amounts in Thousand Rupees)
A. Equity Share Capital

Balance as at 1 April 2023 Changes in equity share Balance as at 31 March 2024
capital during the year
2,67,000 75,000 3,42,000
Balance as at 1 April 2024 Char?ges in‘eqwty share Balance as at 31 March 2025
capital during the year
3,42,000 75,000 4,17,000
B. Other Equity
Reserves and Surplus
6% Non- .
Cumulative Capital
Particutars . Securities | Reserve - General Retained Total
Convertible . : R
Premium | {Forfeited reserve Earnings
Preference
Shares)
Share
Balance as at 1 April 2023 1,50,000.00 2,523.56 1.56 7.827.80 {10,23,155.13) (8,62,802.21)
Profit/{L oss) for the year - - - - {2,42,715.60) (2.42,715.60)
Other comprehensive income - - - - (122.28) (122.26)
Conversion of preference shares into
equity shares (75,000.00) - - - - (75,000.00)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 75,000.00 2,523.56 1.56 7,827.80 (12,65,992.99) {11,80,640.07)
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - - - {1,96,969.33) (1,96,969.33)
Cther comprehensive income - - - - (852.95) {852.95)
Dividends Paid - - - R - N
Transfer {o retained earnings - - - - - -
Conversion of preference shares into
equity shares (75,000.00) - - - - (75.,000.00)
Balance as at 31 March 2025 0.00 2,523.56 1.56 7,827.80 (14,63,815.27) (14,53,462.35)

As per our repert of even date attached

For and on behaif of the Board of Directors

Lt

Ravindra ISamant
Director
DIN:07002226

For SHARP & TANNAN ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Rajk{imar Assudani
Managing Director
DIN:10254310

pramod Blise——~ \l ) Qrade Do
Partner ’ %ﬁﬁ\w’g\\@ PR OML\W%
Membership No. (F} - 047751 S Bots Ananta Das Gaurav Deshmukh

N e

Place - Pune
Date: April 21, 2025

Chief Finance Officer
Date: April 21, 2025

Company Secretary
Date: April 21, 2025
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The Kolhapur Steel Limited
Notes to accounts:

1. Corporate information

The Kolhapur Steel Limited (TKSL), a subsidiary Company of Karad Projects and Motors Limited
{previous year Kirloskar Brothers Limited), established in the year 1965. TKSL is manufacturing
of Mild Steel and Stainless Steel castings for various industries, viz. Power sector, Pumps and
Valve, Mining, Cement, Heavy engineering application, Sugar etc.

2. Material accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with
Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 with section 133 of the Companies Act
2013 as amended on time to time.

fn addition, the guidance notes/announcements issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) are also applied except where compliance with other statutory
promulgations require a different treatment.

The Company maintains it's accounts on accrual basis following historical cost convention
except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values. The financial
statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis,

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 215 April
2025.

2.2 Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following
items, which are measured on an alternative basis in accordance with Ind AS on each reporting
date.

Items Measurement basis

Defined benefit Obligation Fair Value

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR}, which is the Company’s
functional currency. All financial information is presented in INR rounded to the nearest
Thousands except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated.

Exchange differences are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent,
exchange differences which are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on foreign currency
borrowings, are capitalized as part of borrowing costs.

2.4 Use of judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue,
expenses, current assets, non-current assets, current liabilities, non-current liabilities and
disclosure of the contingent liabilities at the end of each reporting period. Although these
estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcom
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This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and
assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

Critical estimates and judgments

The areas involving critical estimates or judgments are:

1. Estimation of defined benefit obligation ~ Refer note 33

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates, Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting
date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate
discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of
government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit
obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables which tend to change only at
interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are
based on expected future inflation rates.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 33.

2. impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets disclosed are based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates. The Company uses judgment in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Company's past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

3. Estimation of provision for warranty claims ~ Refer note 2.15 Provisions
4. Estimated useful life of intangible assets - Refer note 2.8 Intangible asset and amortization

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.

An asset as current when it is:

) Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

. Held primarily for the purpose of trading

. Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle 3 liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
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A liability is current when:

. It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
¢ ft is held primarily for the purpose of trading
¢ [t is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

2.5 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost is calculated on
moving weighted average method.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for
as follows:

+ Raw materials and stores spares: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. The cost is calculated on
moving weighted average method.

* Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing
costs.

* Traded goods: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average
basis.

Based on ageing of inventory and it’s future potential to generate economic benefit, company

provides for slow and non-moving inventory using provision matrix. This provision is reversed
once such inventory is consumed or expected to be consumed.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
Assessment of net-realizable value is made at regular intervals {each reporting period) and at
change of events.

2.6 Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and short-term deposits in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and
highly liquid short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities in balance sheet.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

¢ Recognition and measurement

The cost of an item of PPE, shall be recognized as an asset only if it is probable that future econ/avg‘{ﬁ@_h

associated with the item will flow to the company and cost of the item can be measured relia 7 T3,
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Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are
measured at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and/or
accumulated impairment loss, if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price, including import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies
and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended
use; any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Borrowing
costs directly attributable to the construction of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the
cost.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items {major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Property, plant and equipment under construction are disclosed as capital work-in-progress.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each
reporting date are disclosed under “Other non-current assets”,

* Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within
the part will flow to the Company, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognized. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant
and equipment are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

e Disposal
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with
the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognized net within other
income/expenses in the statement of profit and loss.

+ Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated over the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other
amount substituted for cost, less its residual value. Depreciation is recognized in the statement
of profit and loss generally on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of
an item of property, plant and equipment as prescribed in Schedule Il of the Companies Act
2013, except in following cases where the management based on the technical evaluation have
estimated the life to be higher or lower than the life prescribed in schedule i1,

Particulars Life
Computer 3 and 6 years
Pattern, Tools and Tackles 3 and 8 years

+ Asset held for saie
Non-current assets {or disposal groups) are classified as held for sale when their carrying
amount is expected to be recovered principatly through a sale rather than continued use, and

the sale is highly probable within 12 months.

Such assets are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and
are presented separately in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation ceases once classified as held for
sale. Subsequent impairments or reversals are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If
the sale is no longer probable, the asset is reclassified and measured at the lower of its
recoverable amount and the carrying amount as if it had not been classified as held for sale.
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2.8 Intangible assets and amortization

» Recognition and measurement

intangible assets are recognized when the asset is identifiable, is within the control of the
Company, it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset
will flow to the Company and cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

Intangible assets acquired by the Company that have finite useful lives are measured at cost
less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually, either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level.

+ Subsequent measurement
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.

¢ Amortization

Amortization is calculated over the cost of the asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less
its residual value. Amortization is recognized in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets which is 3 years from the date that
they are available for use, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption
of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset.

2.9 Revenue recognition

Company recognizes revenue when it transfers control over a good or service to a customer i.e.
when it has fulfilled all 5 steps as given by ind AS 115.

Revenue is measured at transaction price i.e. Consideration to which a company expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding
amounts collected on behalf of third parties and after considering effect of variable
consideration, significant financing component,

For contracts with multiple performance obligations, transaction price is allocated to different
obligations based on their standalone selling price. In such case, revenue recognition criteria
are applied for each separately to different performance obligations, in order to reflect the
substance of the transaction and revenue is recognized separately for each obligation as and
when the recognition criteria for the component is fulfilled.

GST is not received by the Company on its own account. Accordingly, it is excluded from
revenue.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer. For contracts that permit the customer to
return an item, revenue is recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur.
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revenue are net of returns, trade allowances, rebates, and goods and service tax.

Rendering of services

Revenue is recognised over time as the services are provided. The stage of completion for
determining the amount of revenue to recognised is assessed based on surveys of work
performed.

If the services under a single arrangement are rendered in different reporting periods, then the
consideration is allocated based on their relative stand-alone selling prices. The stand-alone
selling price is determined based on the list prices at which the Company sells the services in
separate transactions.

Other income

Other income comprises of interest income, dividend income, foreign currency gain on
financial assets and liabilities, weighbridge and export benefits.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues in the statement of profit and loss, using the
effective interest method. Dividend income and export benefits in the form of Duty Draw Back
claims are recognised in the statement of profit and loss on the date that the Company’s right
to receive payment is established.

2.10 Finance costs

Finance costs comprises of interest expense on borrowings, and foreign currency loss on
financial assets and liabilities. Interest expenditure is recognised as it accrues in the statement
of profit and loss, using the effective interest method.

2.11 Foreign currencies transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at exchange rates prevailing at the date of
transactions. kxchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the
year are recognised in the statement of profit and loss of the year.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies which are outstanding, as at
the reporting period are translated at the closing exchange rates and the resultant exchange
differences are recognised in the statement of profit and loss Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured in terms of historical cost are
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at functional currency spot rates at the
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

transiated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the ex
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the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in OC! or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss,
respectively).

2.12 Employee Benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the services are classified
as short term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, expected cost of bonus and short
term compensated absences, leave travel allowance etc. are recognized in the period in which the
employee renders the related service.

Post-Employment Benefits

Defined Contribution Plans

The Company's state governed provident fund scheme related and employee state insurance
scheme are defined contribution plans. The contribution paid/payable under the scheme is
recognized during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Defined Benefit Plans

The employees’ gratuity fund scheme is the Company’s defined benefit plan. The present value of
the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation using the
Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional
unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final
obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount
rates used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans, is based
on the market yields on Government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity
periods approximating to the terms of related obligations.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return
on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit ltability),
are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognized when
the curtailment or settlement occurs. Past service cost is recognized as expenses on a straight-tine
basis over the average period until the benefits become vested.Net interest is calculated by.
applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

Long Term Empioyee Benefit
Compensated absences liabilities mean, the liabilities for earned leave that are not expected to be

settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employee
render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of ex )
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period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields
at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating the terms of the related
obligation

2.13 income Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or items recognised
directly in equity or in OCI.

Current income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s
taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax laws enacted or substantially
enacted at the end of reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situation in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation, It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method on temporary differences between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

] When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

’ When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or

loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying trans lan_ either in
OC! or directly in equity. R0 A4
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

2.14 Provisions

A Provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event
and it is probable that an outflow of resources is expected to settle the obligation, in respect of
which a reliable estimate can be made.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current

pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When

discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a

finance cost.

Contingent liability is disclosed in case of —

a)  a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation.

b}  present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible

c) a possible obligation arising from past events where the probability of outflow of
resources is not remote.

Contingent assets are neither recognized, nor disclosed.
Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet
date.

Warranty provisions

Provisions for warranty-related costs are recognized when the product is sold or service
provided to the customer. Initial recognition is based on historical experience. The initial
estimate of warranty-related costs is revised annually.

2.15 Lleases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

As a Lessee

The company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is focated, less
any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the
end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the
same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is
periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of
the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in thgwigiie or, if
that rate cannot be readily determined, company’s incremental borrowing ra
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company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
- Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

- Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

- Amounts expected to be payabie under a residual value guarantee; and

- The exercise price under a purchase option that the company is reasonably certain to
exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if the company is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease
unless the company is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease fiability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index
or rate, if there is a change in the company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee, or if company changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment
property in ‘property, plant and equipment’ and lease liabilities in ‘loans and borrowings’ in
the statement of financial position.

As a lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognized in income on
a straight-fine basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line
with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases.
The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

Transition to ind AS 116

Ministry of Corporate Affairs {“MCA”} through Companies (Iindian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment
Rules, has notified Ind AS 116 Leases which replaces the existing lease standard, Ind AS 17
Leases, and other interpretations. tnd AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. It introduces
a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting mode! for lessees.

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116, effective annual reporting period beginning April 1,
2019 and applied the standard to all lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the
modified retrospective method. Consequently, the Company recorded the lease liability at the
present value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the
ROU asset at the same value at which the lease liability is recognized.

2.16 impairment of non-financial assets

The company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset
or cash generating unit (CGU) may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the company
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or CGU’s net selling price or its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and i
its recoverable amount.
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2.17 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. Quoted market prices, when
available, are used as the measure of fair value. in cases where quoted market prices are not
available, fair values are determined using present value estimates or other valuation
techniques, for example, the present value of estimated expected future cash flows using
discount rates commensurate with the risks involved. Fair value estimation techniques
normally incorporate assumptions that market participants would use in their estimates of
values, future revenues, and future expenses, including assumptions about interest rates,
default, prepayment and volatility. Because assumptions are inherently subjective in nature,
the estimated fair values cannot be substantiated by comparison to independent market
quotes and, in many cases, the estimated fair values would not necessarily be realized in an
immediate sale or settlement of the instrument.

For cash and other liquid assets, the fair value is assumed to approximate to book value, given
the short term nature of these instruments. For those items with a stated maturity exceeding
twelve months, fair value is calculated using a discounted cash flow methodology.

The instruments carried at fair value were categorized under the three levels of the Ind AS fair
vafue hierarchy as follows:

Level 1: Quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Company has the ability to access. This level of the fair value hierarchy provides the
most reliable evidence of fair value and is used to measure fair value whenever available.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unchservable inputs). These inputs reflect the Company’s own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or tiability {including
assumptions about risk). These inputs are developed based on the best information available
in the circumstances, which include the Company’s own data. The Company’s own data used
to develop unobservable inputs is adjusted if information indicates that market participants
would use different assumptions.

2.18 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value. Purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in
the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

1) Debt instruments at amortized cost

2) Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

3} Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
{FVTPL)

4) Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH)

Derecognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset are transferred or in which the company neither transfers nor retain substantially alf of
the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

Impairment of financial asset

Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of

impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., ioans,
debt securities, deposits, trade receivabies and bank balance

b. Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOC!

c. Lease receivables

d. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115

e. Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

f. Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

a. Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
b. All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116

The application of simplified approach does not require the group to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right
from its initial recognition. For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk
exposure, the group determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to
provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
The company initially recognizes loans and advances, deposits, debt securities issued and
subordinated liabilities on the date on which they are originated. All other financial instruments
(including regular-way purchases and sales of financial assets) are recognized on the trade date,
which is the date on which the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.
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A financial liability is measured initially at fair value, for an item not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.19 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period as reduced by number of shares bought back, if any, The
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events
such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split
(consolidation of shares} that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a
corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.20 Borrowing

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds {net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognized in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognized as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw
down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortized over the period of the facility to which it relates

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial
fiability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in profit or loss as
other gains/{losses).




The Kothapur Steel Limited

Borrowings are classified as current ligbilities unless the group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at 1east 12 months after the reporting period. Where there
is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or pefore the end of the
reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting
date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting
period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as
a consequence of the breach.

2.21 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reporting in a manner consistent with the internal reporting to the
chief operating decision maker {CODM).

The board of directors of the company assesses the financial performance and position of the
company and makes strategic decisions. The Board of Directors, which are identified as a
CODM, consists of chief executive officer, chief financial officer and all other executive
directors.

The company operates in a single reporting segment of ‘Mild and Stainless-Steel Castings’.

2.22 Recent accounting pronouncement

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to
time. During the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS 117 - Insurance
Contracts and amendments to Ind As 116 - Leases, relating to sale and lease back
transactions, applicable from April 1, 2024 The Company has assessed that there is no
significant impact on its financial statements.

MCA has not issued any standards/ amendments 10 accounting standards which are
effective from 1 April 2025.
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The Kothapur Steel Limited
Notes to Accounts

Note 4: Financial Asset - Investments

(Amounts in Thousand Rupees)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2425

As at
31 March 2024

Long term investments (non current)

Investments at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income
7,068 (PY-Nity Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs. 1,266 per

share of Sunsure Solarpark Nineleen Private Limited (Refer note- 34C) 8.018.77 )
Total investments 9,018.77 -
Note 5: Financial Assets : Trade receivables

As at As at

Particutars

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Current
Trade Receivable - Others 44,594 .87 56,570.58
Trade Receivable from Related Party (Refer note 34) 9.640.90 9,774.19
Less: Loss Allowance (15,678.57) (2,866.04)
Totai 38,656.20 63,478.73
Break-up of Security Details
Trade Receivable Considered Good- Secured - -
Trade Receivable Considered Good- Unsecured 38,656.20 63.478.73
Trade Receivable which have significant increase in credit risk 15,579.57 2,866.04
Trade Receivable- Credit Impaired - -
54,235877 66,344.77
Less: Loss Allowance {15,579.57) {2,866.04)
Total 38,656.20 63,478.73
Total Trade receivables 38,656.20 63,478.73

1. Trade receivabies are non interest bearing and are generally on, 30 days 1o 90. days credit term. Refer note 37 for

ageing and movement of loss allowance.

2. No trade or other receivable or loans are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly
with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or privale companies respectively in which any
director is a panner, a director or a member except Rs 2,829.77 thousand receivable from Kirfoskar Ebara Pumps Limited-

refer note no 34 D.
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The Keothapur Steel Limited
Notes to Accounts

Note € : Financial Assets: Others

(Amounts in Thousand Rupees)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Non-current

{a) Security deposits 2,026.65 1,264.65
(b) Margin Money Deposit with bank having maturity more 1.934.63 1.808.62

than 12 months

3,961.28 3,073.27

Less: Loss Allowance - -

Total 3,961.28 3,073.27

Current

Total - -
Total Financial Assets Gthers 3,961.28 3,073.27
Note 7 : Other non-current assets

As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

{a) Capital advances 1,644.38 -

1,644.38 .
(b} Other Prepaid Borrowing Cost 351.38 527.06
{c} Prepaid expenses 202.54 28.86
{d) Advance income tax {net of provision) 808.10 2,351.42
Total Other non-current assets 3,006.40 2,907.34
Note 8 : Inventories

As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

{8) Raw Materials 27,112.05 25,196.24

{b) Work-in-progress 93,886.43 39,881.19

{c) Finished goods 2,514.92 4.513.51

{d) Stock-in-trade 4,792.17 6,634.17

(e} Stores and spares 20,243.35 26,608.83
{Mode of valuation refer nole 2.5 of Notes to Agcounts)

Total Inventories 1,48,648.93 1,02,833.94

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value amounted to (net of reversal} Rs. 0.00 Thousand on Finished Goods
and Rs. 2,320.28 Thousand on Work in Progress, (31 March 2024 : Rs 20.00 thousand on Finished Goods and Rs.
3,671.97 Thousand on Work in Progress). These were recognised as an expenses during the year and included in

‘material consumption'.

Refer Note No.14 for details of inventory pledged as security




The Kalhapur Steel Limited
Notes to Accounts

Note 9 : Cash and cash equivalents

{Amounts in Thousand Rupees)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

(a) Balances with bank

In current account 5.40¢ 4.87

Other bank deposils .
(b) Cash on hand 48.23 89.11
{c) Cheques on hand - 4,110.49
Total Cash and cash equivalents 53.63 4,204.47

Note 10 : Other current assets

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

(a) Advances to supplier and others
Capital Advance

Others §2.22 124.86

82.22 124.86

(b) Prepaid expenses 2,166.92 1,895.44

(c) Other Prepaid Borrowing Cost 175.69 175.69
(d) Claims receivable

Deposits and receivables from Custom and Service Tax 542.21 542.21

GST Receivable 93,148.02 $6,641.05

96,032.84 99,254.39

Total Other current asset 86,115.06 99,379.25

Note 11 : Asset Held for Sale

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

a) Asset Held for Sale

53,093.77

53,093.77

Total Asset Held for Sale

53,093.77

53,093.77

The company has irrevocably agreed to sell ,convey, transfer and assign all the pieces and parcels of the land

admeasuring area of 36,421.7 Sq. mtr to KBL {Ultimate Holding Company) through Agreement to sale against which
company has received an amount of Rs.1,37,000.00 Thousand as a token amount.
Accordingly as per Ind As-105 "Non current Asset held for sale and Discontinued Operations®- the said portion of
land and building thereon is classified as current asset held for sate in results.




The Kolhapur Steel Limited
Notes to Accounts

Note 12: Equity share capltal

(Amounts in Thoysand Rupees)

Particulars

Authorised

45,000 (40,000) equity shares of Rs 10,000/- each

Issued, subscribed & fully paid up
41,700 (34,200) Equity Share of Rs 10,000/- each

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
4,50,000.00 4,00,000.00
4,17,000.00 3,42,000.00
4,17,000.00 3,42,000.00

a) Terms/ rights attached {o equity shares

i) The company has only one class of equity shares, having par value of Rs. 10,000/~ per share(Previous year
Rs.10,000/- per share). Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share and has a right to receive
dividend as recommended by the board of directors subject to the necessary approval from the shareholders. In
the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitied to receive remaining assets
of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number

of equity shares held by the shareholders.

b} Reconciliation of share capital

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Particuiars
Number Amount Number Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 34,200 3,42,000.00 26,70,00,000 2.67,000.00
Less:-by consolidation of existing 10,000 equity shares of
Re.1/- each into new 1 equity share of Rs 10,000/- - - {26,68,73,300} -
{Rupees Ten Thousand only) each **
Preferen*ce Sharas Converted into equity shares during 7,500 75,000.00 7.500.00 76.000.00
the year
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 41,700 4,17,000.00 34,200 3.42,000.00
¢} Details of sharehoider holding more than 5% shares
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Name
No. of % of Holding No. of Shares % of Holding
Shares ’
Karad Projects and Motors Limited 41,700 100 N{I
Kirloskar Brothers Limited Nil 34,200 100




The Kothapur Steel Limited
Notes to Accounts

d) Shares Held by Holding Company

{Amounts in Thousand Rupees)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Name o ol
. o . o .
Shares % of Holding No. of Shares % of Holding
Karad Projects and Motors Limiled # 41,700 100 Nil
Kirloskar Brothers Limited il 34,200 100

In last five years the Company has neither issued any bonus shares nor shares issued for consideration other than cash. Furlher
the Company has not bought back any shares in last five years.

# With effect from 1st October 2024, the Company became wholly owned subsidiary company of Karad Projects and Motors
Limited by virtue of 10G% shares transferred from Kiroskar Brothers Limited 10 Karad Projects and Motors Limited.

* During the year, the company has converted second tranch of 7,50,00,000 6% Non-cumulative convertible preference shares of

Re.1 each into 7,500 equity share of Rs.10,000 each

**As per share holders approval and vide National Company Law Tribunal {(NLCT) Mumbat order dated 23rd February 2024, the
Cempany has censolidated the [ssued, Subscribed and Paid up equity shares in the share capital of the Company by increasing the
face value of the equity shares from Re. 1/- (Rupee One Only) each to Rs 10,000/~ {Rupees Ten Thousand Only) each by
consolidating existing 10,000 equity shares of Re.1/- each info new 1 equity share of Rs 10,000/ (Rupees Ten Thousand anly)

each.

As at March 2025

Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year

Promoter Name

No. of Shares

% of Totat shares

% Change during

heid the year
Equity Shares {of Rs, 10,000 each)
Karad Projects and Motors Limited 41,700 100 100
Sub Total 41,700

As at March 2024

Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year

Promoter Name

No. of Shares

% of Total shares

% Change during

held the year
Equity Shares {of Rs. 10,000 each)
Kiroskar Brothers imited 34,200 100 28.09
Sub Totai 34,200
Preference Shares {of Re. 1 each})
Kirleskar Brothers Limited 7.50,00,000 100 -50.00
Sub Total 7.50,00,000




The Koihapur Steel Limited
Notes to Accounts

Note 13: Other Equity

{Amounts in Thousand Rupees)

(a)

)

(c)

L)

{e)

Add:

As at As at
Particut

cuars 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
6% Non-Cumutative Convertible Preference Shares
Opening Balance 76,000.00 1,50,000.00
l.ess: Preference Shares Converted info equity shares during the year (75.000.00) {75,000.00)
Closing Balance - 75,000.00
Securities premium
Opening balance 2.523.56 2,523.56
Add: Securities premium credited on shares issue - -
Ciosing Balance 2,523.56 2,523.56
Capital Reserve - (Forfeited Shares)
Opening Balance 1.56 1.56
Add: Transfer from any surplus - -
Closing Balance 1.66 1.56
General reserves
Opening balance 7.827.80 7.827.80
Add: Transfer from any surplus - -
Closing Balance 7.827.80 7,827.80
Retained Earning
Opening balance {12,65,992.99) (10,23,155.13)
Total comprehensive income for the year (1,97,822.28) {2,42,837.86)
Balance available for appropriation {14,63,815.27) (12,65,992.99)
Sub Tota! {14,63,815.27) (12,65,992.99}
Cilosing balance (14,53,462.35) {11,80,640.07}

Nature and purpose of Other Reserves:

1) Securities Premium: Securities premium is used to record premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance

with the provisions of the Act.

2) General Reserves: General Reserves are the retained earnings of the Company which are kept aside out of company's
profits to meet future (known/unknown) obligations. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

3) 6% Non-Cum‘uIatIve convertible Preference Share Capltai

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Authorised
10,00,00,000 {15,00,00,000) 6% Non-Cumulative

convertible Preferance Share Capital of Re 1 each 1.00.000.00 1,50.060.00
Issued, subscribed & fully paid up

. o j X .
Nit (7,50,00,000) 6% Non-Cumulative converlible ) 7,50,000.00

Preference Share Capital of Re 1 each

a) Terms/ rights attached to Preference Shares

1) 6% Non-Cumulative Convertible Preference shares: Company has issued 6% non-cumulative convertible preference shares
of Re. 1 each. The same is convertible into equity shares of equal amount, as the company deems fit after six months and
within 3 years from the date of allotment. During the year, the due date for conversion of the preference shares was extended
upto September 30, 2024 with the approvat of the Board and consent of the shareholder.

2) In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of preference shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
company before distributing any amount to equity share holders.




The Kolhapur Steel Limited
Notes to Accounts

Note 13: Other Equity Cont..

b) Reconciliation of Preference share capital {Amounts in Thousand Rupees)
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Number Amount Number Amount
Shares outstanding al the beginning of the year 7.50,00,000 75,000.00 15,00,00,000 1,50,000.00
. i sh
gre.ference Shares Converted into equily shares (7.50,00,000)  (75,000.00) (7.50,00,000) (75,000.00)
uring the year
Shares oulstanding af the end of the year - - 7,60,00,000 75,000.00
c) Details of shareholder holding more than 5% shares
As at As at
Name 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
No. of Shares | % of Holding No. of Shares % of Holding
Kirloskar Brothers Limited - 1] 7.50,00,000 100
d) Shares Held by Ultimate Holding Company
As at As at
Name 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
No. of Shares | % of Holding No. of Shares % of Holding
Kirioskar Brothers Limited - ] 7.50.00.000 100
Note 14 : Financlal Liabilities: Borrowings
As at As at
Particul
articufars 31 March 2025 | 3t March 2024
Non-current
Secured
Working capital Term [oan from banks 30,000.00 50,000.00
Terms of Loan
i) Secured against hypothecation of Curtent Assels of the Company, Exclusive charge
on Al Fixed Assets(moveable and immoveable) and corporate guarantee by Helding
i) Loan carries interest @ Repo Rate + 3.75%
i) To be repaid in 10 Equal Quarterly instalments of Rs 5,000 Theusand starting from
June 2024,
Less- Current maturities of non current borrowings disclosed under this head 20,000.00 20,000.00
10,000.00 30,000.00
Secured
Term loan from banks 50,522.73 66,068.18
Terms of Loan
i) Secured against hypothecation of immovable property and corporate guarantee by
Rolding
ii) Loan carries interest @ I-MCLR{1Y) + 2.15%
it} To be repaid in 22 Quarterly instalments of Rs 3,886.36 Thousand starting from
March 2023.
Less- Current maturities of nen current borrowings disclosed under this head 15.545.45 15.545.45
Separately
34,977.28 50,522.73




The Keolhapur Steel Limited
Notes to Accounts

Note 14 : Financial Liabilities: Borrowings- Cont... {Amounts in Thousand Rupees)

As at As af

Particul
articulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Unsecured

1} Loan from Ultimate Holding Company -Kirloskar Brothers Limited 31.527.77 81,527.77
i} Loan from Uitimate Holding Company carries interest @ 8.50% and payment on
quarierly basis.

it} To be repaid after 3 years in 36 equal monthly instalments, starting from end of
maratorium period for each disbursement separately. Lender has right 1o ask for pre-
payment by giving 90 days prior notice to the borrawer,

Less- Current maturilies of non current borrewings disclosed under this head

.
Separately 31.527.77 50,000.00

Sub total - 31,527.77

Total Non current borrowings 44 977.28 1,12,050.50

Current

Loans repayable on demand from bank

Warking capital demand 16.289.08 17.156.93
loans . T

TEITHS UL IVdEls,
i) Loan carries interest @MCLR+1.75%.

ii) Secured against hypothecation of stock & receivables and mortgage of plant & mach

Current maturities of long term loan 67.073.22 85,545.45

Unsecured
1) Loan frem Holding Company 3,060,000.00 25,000.00
i} Loan from Holding Company carries interest @ 9.50% and payable within one year.

2} Interest Free Loan from Ultimate Holding Company as per order of BIFR 9,414.02 9,514.02

Total cgrrent 3,92,776.32 1,37,216.40
borrowings

There has been no continuing default on the balance sheet date in repayment of any
of the above borrowings & interest thereon.

Quarterly returns or stalements of current assels filed with bank are in agreement
with the books of accounts.

The Company has utilised ioans for the specific purpose for which same are availed.

Total Borrowings 4,37,753.60 2,49,266,90
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The Kothapur Steel Limited
Notes to Accounts

Note 15: Cther financial labilities

{Amounts in Thousand Rupees)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Non Current

(a) Lease Liability 1,114.79 1.377.88
Total other financial liabilities - Non Current 1,114.79 1,377.88
Current

{a) Lease Liability Payahle within one year 263.10 239.11
Total other financial fiahiiities - Current 263.10 239.11

(b} Others
Trade deposits 29.00 25.00
Salary & Reimbursements 11,211.99 9,377.50
Payables on account of purchases of fixed assels - 1,769.58
Sundry Creditors olhers 2,187.60 1.841.66
Provision for expenses’ 26,508.34 17,771.99

39,936,593 30,785.73
Total Other financial Hiabilities - Current 40),200.03 31,024.84
Total Other financial liabilities 41,314.82 32,402.72
* includes amounts payable to directors Rs - 246.27
Terms and conditions of the above financiat labilities:
1} Other payables are non-inferest bearing ang have an average term of one month
2}  For explanations on the Group's credit risk management processes. {Refer Note 37)
Note 16 : Financial Liabilities: Trade pavables -
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Current

Dues of Micro and Small Enterprises {refer note 39}

Related Parties

10.882.36

42,985.46

Olhers
10,882.36 42,985.46
Dues of other than Micro and Small Enterprises
Refated Parties 8,36,817.44 7,05,731.59
Others 18,640.11 57,837.41
8,55,457.55 7,63,569.00
Total Trade payable 8,66,339.91 8,06,554.46

Terms and conditions of the above financial Habilities:

1) Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normaliy setlied on 45-60 day terms
2) For explanations on the Group's credit risk management processes. (refer note 37)

3) Unbilled duses as on 31st March 2025 is Rs. 1,380.02 Thousand (Previous Year Rs 1,439.19 Thousand)




The Kolhapur Steel Limited
Notes to Accounts

Note 17: Provisions

{Amounts in Thousand Rupees)

Particutars

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Nan-current
Provision for employee benefits

Compensated absences (refer note 35) 272112 2,889.44
Graluity {refer note 33) 20,116.48 25,632.52
22,837.60 28,521.96
22,837.60 28,521.96
Current
Provision for employee benefits
Compensated absences (refer note 35) 3,781.914 3,661.34
Gratuity {refer nole 33) 4,096.01 6,809.96
7,877.92 10,471.30
Other provision (refer note 35)
Provision for product warranty 2,366.19 492 .91
2,366.1% 492.91
10,244.11 10,964.21
Total Provisions 33,081.71 39,486.17
Note 18: Other Liabilities
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

MNon current

Advance against sale of land {Refer Note 11) 1,37,000.60 1,37,000.00
Total Other non current liabilities 1,37,000.00 1,37,000.00
Current
(a} Advance from customer
- Related Parties 62,697.02 39,153.67
- Others 2,460.28 4,790.30
{b) Contribution to PF ang others B809.63 1,000.04
(c} Slatutory dues 25,579.81 91,35B.74
91,546,74 1,36,302.75
Total Other current liabilities 91,546.74 1,36,302.75%
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The Kolhapur Steel Limited
Notes to Accounts

Note 19 : Income tax

{Amounts in Thousand Rupees)

a The major components of Income tax expense for the period ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 are:

(&) Profit or loss

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

Current income tax:

Currenl income 1ax charge

Adjustments in respect of income tax of previous years
Deferred tax:

Relating to crigination and reversal of temparary gifferences {632.15) 13,265.95
income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss {632.15) 13,265.95
{b} Other Comprehensive income
Current {ax related to items recognised in OG| during the year
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Income tax charged to OCI 286.87 41.12

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for 3t March 2025 and

@ 31 March 2024:

Particutars

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

Accounting profit/(loss) before {ax

Adjustments

Add: Exempt income
Dividend

Subtotal (b)

Add: Accelerated deduction
Allowance of TDS on payment basis

Subtotal (c}

Less : Non deductible expenses
Penalties and fines

Provision for Advances

Donaticn

Subtotal {d}

Sub total (e) = (b+c-d}

Tax impact of above adjustments

Rate difference on opening DTAS OTL

CH losses on which DTA was not recognised
Total (f

Tax expenses at effective rate {a-f)

Tax expenses recorded in books

At india’s statutory income tax rate of 25.168% (PY@ 25.168%) (a)

(1,96.337 18
(49,414.14)

(2.55,881.55)
[64,425.44)

{46,781,99}

(77.691.38)

{48,781.99)

{77,691.38)

{632.15)

13,265.95

{632.15)

13,265.95




The Kolhapur Steel Limited
Notes to Accounts

Note 19 : income tax

&
{a)

()

Movement in deferred tax

{Amounts in Thousand Rupees)

Deferred tax relates te the following: (DTLYDTA

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

Property. plant and equipment, Righl of use and Intangible Assels (5,980.34) {6,159.89)
Employee benefits - compensated absences 1,636.68 9.813.82
Provision for doubtfuf debls and advances 3,821.07 72132
Employee benefits - Gratuity 6,093.80

Employee benefits - Bonus & GST Interest payable 5,677.32 4,5056,22
Lease Liabilities 346.79 406.96
Deferred Borrowing Cost (88.43) -
Indl As borrowing cosl (44.22) {44.22)
Trade payabies MSME and VRS 6,307.25 8.971.99
Net deferred tax {liabilities)/ agsets 17,869.92 18,215.20

Year ended Year ended

Particulars

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Property, plant and equipment (Depreciation) 179.55 {45.24)
Employee benefils - compensaled absences (8,177.14) 8,339.72
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 3,189.75 (81.91)
Employee benefits - Graluily 6.083.80 (7,805.97)
Employee benelils - Bonus & GST Inlerest payabic 1,172.10 3,808.31
Lease Liabilities {60.17) {54.70)
Deferred Borrowing Cost {88.43) 176.87
ind As horrowing cosl 0.00 -
Expenses Disallowed {2,664.74) 8,971.99
Deferred tax {expense)income including OCI Impact {345.28) 13,307.07
. As at As at
Reflected in balance sheet as 31 March 2025 34 March 2024
Deferred 1ax asset 17,869.92 18,215.20
Deferred tax liabitily - -
Net Deferred tax asset 17,869.92 18,215.20
Net Deferred tax asset 17,869.92 18,215.20




The Kothapur Steel Limited
Notes to Accounts

Note 20: Revenue from Operations

(Amounts in Thousand Rupees)

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

Revenue from Contracts with Customers:

Sale of products

{a) 2,49,287.23 4,93,287.68
(b) Sale of services 4.983.10 11,678.65
(c) Sales of Patterns 8.,556.10 4,830.28
{d) Other operating revenues
Sales of Scrap 9,934.07 23,756.39
Others 2,609.91 3860.80
Export incentive 357.12 536.67
12,901.10 24,673.86
Total Revenue from Operations 2,75,727.53 5,34,470.47
Additional disclosures as required by IND AS 115 revenue from contracts with customers
A: Disaggregation of revenue from sale of products f services
. Year ended Year ended
P 1
anticulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
a) Within India 2.67,762.19 4,94,121.48
b) Outside india 7,964.74 40,348.99
Total 2,75,727.53 5,34,470.47
B: Reconciliation of revenue from sale of products / services with the contracted price
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
vhar 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Contracled price 2,76,259.11 5,37.667.48
Less - Trade discounts, volume rebates, late delivery charges etc 531.58 3,197.01
Total 2,75,727.53 5,34,470.47
Note 21: Other Income
Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

(a) iInterestIncome on financial assets at amortised cost

From Bank 126.00 8.63
From Others 81.36 166.38
207.36 175,01
(b} Foreign exchange difference {net} 341.24 520.73
(c) Other non-operating income
Excess provision written back 4,65 634.44
Miscellaneous receipt 1,177.24 269.20
Profit on Sale of Assets 2.50 1,230.49
Weighing scale receipts 1,5649.30 1,402.12
2,733.69 3,526.25
Total Other Income 3,282.29 4,221.99

(&




The Kothapur Steel Limited
Notes to Accounts

Note 22: Cost of materials consumed

{Amounts in Thousand Rupees)

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

{a) Raw materials consumed 1,55,012.63 2,99,820.88
{b} Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 6,104.30 4,178.00
Note 23: Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in -Trade and work-in-progress
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Opening Stock
Finished goods 4.513.51 20,597.00
Work-in- progress 39,881.19 67,138.49
Stock in trade 5.634.17 9.676.67
51,028.87 97.412.16
Closing Stock
Finished goods 2,514.93 4,513.61
Work-in- progress 93,086.43 39,881.1%
Stock in frade 4,782.17 6,634.17
1,01,293.53 51,028.87
Total Changes "T inventeries of finished goods, Stock-in - (50,264.66) 46,383.29
TYrade and work-in-progress
Note 24: Employee benefits expense
Year ended Year ended
=]
articulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(a} Salaries, wages and bonus 81,452.45 90,606.24
(b) Defined contribution plans
Caonftribution to provident fund and £.5.1 5,172.93 5,650.13
(¢) Defined benefit plans
Gratuity 1,827.35 1,851.60
(d) Welfare expenses 3,297.61 4,007.55
Total Employee benefits expense 91,750.34 1,02,118.52
Note 25: Fihance costs
" Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
interest expense
@) {cafculated using effective rate of interest) 45.241.70 57,465.74
Other borrowing costs
() (includes bank guarantee commission, LC charges, loan 1,706.26 1,830.45
processing charges)
(c) Interest Exp-lease Liability 144.89 166.70
{d) Net interest expenses on defined benefit obligation 1,865.60 2.192.28
Total Finance costs 48,958.45 61,655.17
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The Kothapur Steel Limited
Notes to Accounts

Note 26: Depreciation and amortization expense

{Amounts in Thousand Rupees)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(a) Depreciation on properly, plant and equipment 14,718.76 14,529.57
{bY Amortization of intangibie assets 180,43 185.75
{c) Depreciation on investment property - 53.21
(d) Depreciation on Right of Use assels 278.70 278.83
Total Depreciation and amortization expense 15,177.89 15,047.36
Note 27: Other expenses
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Stores and spares consumed 35,679.21 65,804.20
Processing charges 41,797.2¢ 81,388.28
Power & fuel 62,610.24 87,946.83
Repairs and maintenance
Plant and machinery 2,900.84 5,447.86
Buildings 394.54 1,385.95
Other 88.42 167.42
Rent, Rales and taxes 16,596.13 1,581.03
Travel and conveyance 1,139.43 1,149,156
Insurance 684.64 778.83
Directors' sitting fees 240.60 395.00
Freight and forwarding charges 1,377.53 1,620.38
Brokerage and commission 214.79 213.68
Provision for product warranty 2,275.99 2,510,186
Provision for doubtiul debts, advances and claims 11,790.08 -
Bad debls written off 18.95 566.01
Auditor's remuneration (refer note 31} 667.03 549.70
Professional, consultancy and legal expenses 2,927.10 4.815.73
Security services 4,578.61 4.643.62
Foreign exchange difference (net} 121.31 -
Agsets Written off - 153.99
Other misceflaneous expenses 3,883.12 4,345.96
Total Other expenses 1,80,885.25 2,65,473.79
Note 28: Other Comprehensive Income
Year ended Year ended

Particuiars

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or foss
Remeasurements gains and losses on post employments

benefits (1,139.82) (163.38)
Tax on remeasurarnents gains and fosses 286.87 41.12
Net Other Comprehensive Income {852,95) (122.26)




The Kolhapur Steel Limited
Notes {o Accounts:

{Amounts in Thousand Rupees)

Note 29: Contingent liabilities
- As at As at
i
Particutars 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
{a)  Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt
i) Disputed excise duty dues (Matter Subjudice) 1,.092.47 1,092.47
(Against these demands, an amount of Rs. 542,21 thousand
(Previous year Rs.542.21thousand } has been paid under protest.)
The Company has filed Appeal in Tribunal Mumbai for CENVAT
credil on scrap sales
i} Goods and Service Tax 3.911.02 -
The Company has filed appeal filed before commissioner of central
tax and amourt paid under protest Rs 83.59 thousand
{b)  Other money for which the company is contingently liable
Disputed matlers under fabour law 350.00 1,406.00
(Cne case is pending in Kolhapur Security Guard Board, Kothapur)
(Seven labour cases in Previous vear)
5,353.49 2,498.47
Note 30: Capital Commitments
. As at As at
P 1
articulars 31 March 2025 [ 31 March 2024
Estimated amount of condracts remaining to be executed on capital
. : 1,664.69 -
account and not provided for {net of capital advances)
Note 31: Remuneration to Auditors
. Year ended Year ended
|
Particulars 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Statutory Auditors :
a) Audit Fees 400.00 400,00
k) Tax Audit Fees 50.00 50.00
¢) Limited Review 100.00 -
d) Other services 60.00 79.00
&) Expenses reimbursed 57.03 20.70
667.03 549.70
Note 32: Earning per Share {Basic and diluted)
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
{ - Basic and Difuted
a) Profit for the yvear before tax (1,96,337.18) (2,55,981.55)
Less : Atfributable Tax thereto (632.15) 13.265.95
Profit after Tax (1,96,969.33)] (2,42,715.80)
k) Weighted average number of equily shares used as denominator 37,950 34,200
&) Welght_ed average number of Diluted equity shares used as 41,700 41,700
denominator
Basic earning Rupees per share of nominal value of Re 10,000/~
9 each (Previous Year Re. 10.000f- each) (5,190.23) (7.086.95)
Diluted earning Rupees per share of nominal value of Re 10,000/-
e gach (Previous Year Re. 10,000/- each)* (5.190.23) (7.096.95)

*As the Company has incurred loss during the year, dilutive effect on weighted average number of shares would

have an anti-dilutive impact and hence, not considered.




The Kolhapur Steel Limited
Notes to Accounts:

Note 33: Employee Benefits

i Defined Contribution Plans:
Amount of Rs. 5,172.93 thousand (Previous year Rs.5,850.13 thousand} is recognised as an expense and included in
“Employees benefits expense” (Nole-24) in the Profit and Loss Statement,

il Defined Benefit Plans:

(Amounts in Thousand Rugpees)

a) The amounts recognised in Balance Sheet are as follows:
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Particulars Gratuity Plan Gratuity Pian
{Non Funded) {Non Funded}
A, Amount fo be recegnised in Balance Sheet
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 24,212.49 32,442.49
Less: Fair Value of Plan Assels - -
Amount to be recognised as liability or (asset) 24,212.49 32,442.49
B.  Amounts reflecled in the Balance Sheet
Liabilities 24,212.49 32,442.48
Assets
Net Liabilityf{Assets) 24,212,49 32,442.49
b) The amounts recognised in the Profit and Loss Statement are as follows:
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 3 Mar.ch 2025 31 Mar_ch 2024
Gratuity Plan Gratuity Plan
{Non Funded) {Non Funded)
1 Current Service Cost 1.827.35 1,851.60
2 Acquisition {Gain)/ loss - -
3 Past Service Cost - .
4  Nellnterest (income)lexpenses 1.865.60 2,192.28
5 Actuarial Losses/(Gains) -
6 Curtailment (Gain)/ loss -
7_Settlement (Gain)/loss -
:elt periodic benefit cost recognised in the statement of profit 3,692.95 4,043.88
oss
¢} The amounts recognised in the statement of other comprehensive income (OGH
2024-25 2023.24
Particulars Gratuity Plan Gratuity Plan
(Non Funded) {Non Funded)
1 Opening amount recegnised in OCI outside profit and loss )
account
2 Remeasurements for the year - Obligation (Gainlioss 1,139.82 163.38
3 Remeasurement for the year - Plan assets (Gain) / Loss -
4 Total Rerneasurements Cost / (Credit ) for the year recognised in 1,139.82 163.38
5 Less: Accumulated balances transferred to retained earnings ,139.82 163.38
Closing balances (remeasurement (Gain)loss recognised OCI - -
d) The changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation representing reconciliation of opening and closing
batances thereof are as follows:
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Particulars Gratuity Plan Gratuity Plan
(Non Funded) (Nen Funded)
1 Bai_ance of the present value of obligation as al beginning of the 32,442.49 31.015.48
period
2 Acquisition adjustment - -
3 Transfer in/ {out) - -
4 Interest expenses 1,865.60 2,192.28
5 Past Service Cost - -
6 Current Service Cost 1,827.35 1.851.60
7 Curtailment Cost/ {credit) - -
8 Settiement Cost/ {credit) - -
g Benefits paid % {13,062.78) (2.780.25)
10 Remeasurements on obligation - {Gain) / Loss 1,136.82 163,38
Present value of obligation as ai the end of the period Y 124,212.49 32,442 .49




The Kolthapur Steel Limited
Notes to Accounts:

{Amounts in Thousand Rupees)
Note 33: Employee Benefits {Cont.)

e} Netinterest (Income) /expenses

Particutars

2024-25

2023-24

Gratuity Plan
{Non Funded)

Gratuity Plan
(Non Funded)

1 Interest { Income) / Expense ~ Obdigation 1,865.60 2.192.28
2 Interest {Income) / Expense - Plan assels - -
3 Net interest (Income) / Expense for the year 1.865.60 2,192.28
) Princlpal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date {expressed as weighted averages)
1 Discount rale as at 31-03-2025 - 6.60% ( as at 31-03-2024 - 7.20%)
5 Salary growth rate : For Gratulty Scheme - Workers @5% and stafl @8% (as at 31-03-2024 -Workers @5% and staff
@8%)
3 Aftrition rate: For gratuity scheme the attrition rate is {aken at 8% ( as at 31-03-2024 - 8%}
The estimates of future salary increase considered in actuarial vaiuation take into account inflation, seniorily, premotion
4 and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market and the past history regargding salary
increase.
g} The amounts pertaining to defined benefit plans are as foliows:
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Particulars Gratuity Plan Gratuity Plan
{Non Funded) {Non Funded}
Defined Benefit Obligation 24,212.48 32,442.49
Pfan Assets - -
Surplus/{Deficit) (24,212.49) {32.442.49}
h} General descriptions of defined plans:
Gratuity Plan:
The Company operates gratuity plan wherein every employee is entitled 1o the benefil equivalent 1o fifteen days salary
last drawn for each completed year of service. The same is payable on termination of service or retirement whichaver is
earlier. The benefil vests after five years of continuous service,
i} Sensitivity analysis
Sensitivity analysis indicates the influence of a reasonable change in certain significant assumptions on the cutcome of
the Present value of obligation (PVO). Sensitivity analysis is done by varying (increasing/ decreasing) one parameter by
1006 basis points (1%)
Effect on gratuity obligation
Change In assumption As at 31 March 2025 Change in assumption As at 31 March 2024
1 Discount rate { 5.6%) Discount rate (7.2%)
Increase by 1% 22,999.23 Increase by 1% 31,071.29
Decrease by 1% 25,545.49 |Decrease by 1% 33,939.62
2 Salary increase rate (staff-8% Salary increase rate (slaff
and Workers-5%) 8% and Workers 5%)
Increase by 1% 25,317.65 {Increase by 1% 33,652.87
Decrease by 1% 23,184.98 |Decrease by 1% 31,312.38
3 Withdrawal rate { 8%) Withdrawal rate { 8%)
Increase by 1% 24,279.26 |increase by 1% 32,550.59
Decrease by 1% 24,141.47 |Decrease by 1% 32,327.08




The Kolhapur Steed Limited
Notes to Accounts:

Note 34: Related Party Disclosures

(A) Names of the related party and nature of relationship where control (including commeon control} exists and

transactions entered into:

Sr. No. |[Name of the related party

Nature of relationship

1 Kirloskar Brothers Limited

Karad Projects and Motors Limited
Kirloskar Corrocoat Private Limited
Kirloskar Brothers Internationai B V
SPP Pumps Limited U K.

Kirlogkar Brothers(Thailand) Limited
SPP Pumps (MENA)L.L.C.
Kirloskar Pomgpen B.V

Micawber 784 Proprietary Limited

b WM

w N>

Pty. Ltd ( South Africa)

11 [SPPPumps SAS

12 |SPP Pumps Inc

13 [SPP Pumps South Africa Proprietary Limited
14 |Braybar Pumps (Proprietary)iid.

15 {Rodelta Pumps Internationat BV

16 jRotaserve B.V. — Netherlands

17 {SPP Pumps Real Estate LLL.C

18  {SyncroFio Inc,

19 |SPP Pumps (Asia)ltd {Thaitand)

20 [SPP Pumps (Singapore) Lid

21 |Rotaserve Limited

22 |Rotaserve Mozambique

23  |Kirloskar Ebara Pumps Limited

24  [Sunsure Solarpark Nineteen Private Limited

SPP Pumps infernaticnal Proprietary Limited, South
10 |Africa {formerly a.k.a. Kirfoskar Brothers Internationat

Ultimate Holding Company
Helding Company

Feflow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Subsidiary of Feliow Subsidiary
Subsidiary of Feliow Subsidiary
Subsidiary of Fellow Subsidiary
Subsidiary of Feliow Subsidiary
Subsidiary of Felfow Subsidiary

Subsidiary of Fellow Subsidiary

Subsidiary of Fellow Subsidiary
Subsidiary of Fellow Subsidiary
Subsidiary of Fellow Subsidiary
Subsidiary of Fellow Subsidiary
Subsidiary of Fellow Subsidiary
Subsidiary of Fellow Subsidiary
Subsidiary of Fellow Subsidiary
Subsidiary of Fellow Subsidiary
Subsidiary of Feliow Subsidiary
Subsidiary of Fellow Subsidiary
Subsidiary of Fellow Subsidiary
Subsidiary of Fellow Subsidiary

Jaint venture of Ultimate Holding Company
Associate of Ultimate Holding Company

{B) Names of Key Management Personnel

Rajkumar Assudani
Ravindra Samant
Ravish Mittal
Achyut Dhadphale
K.Taranath

Suresh Deshpande
Rudrappa Mahajan
Gaurav Deshmukh
Avinash Yadav
Ananta Das

DN B W N

-
=]

Managing Director

Director

Director (Up to 28-02-2025)

Independent Director

Independent Director

Independent Director

Independent Director

Company Secretary

Chief Financiat Officer {Up to 24-12.-2024) [refer note 46{d)]
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The Kolhapur Steel Limited
Notes to Accounts:

Note 34

Related Party Disclosures {Cont.)

{C) Disclosure of related parties transactions

{Amounts in Thousand Rupees)

2024-25 2023-24
81, No. Nature of transaction/relationship/major parties
Amount Amount for Amount Amount for
Major parties * Major parties *
1 Pu_rchase of _goods & sewicqs o 1,27,314.57 2,22,186.12
{l)JlI:]lz::le Holding Company - Kirloskar Brothers Limited 1,24.630.58 2.19.960.71
Joint Venture of Ullimate Holding Company- Kirloskar Ebara
L 273.58 -
Pumps Limited
Ulllm_a%e Helding company - Kirfloskar Srothers Limited 241041 222541
Services
2 Sale of goods/contract revenue & services 1,06,873.82 2,26,924.00
Uitimate Holding company - Kirloskar Brothers Limited - 97 .466.15 1.73.023.25
Goods
Ultlm_ale Holding company - Kirloskar Brothers Limited - 463,50 2.076.32
Services
Joint VeqtuTe of Ultimate Holding Company- Kirloskar Ebara 8.924.17 51 824,43
Pumps Limited
3 Finance Cost 24,369.95 20,409.63
Ultimate Holding company - Kirloskar Brothers Limited 5.336.11 9.586.11
Interest
Ultimate Holding company « Kirloskar Brothers Limited
- . - 1,122.24
Interest on Bill Discounting
Jeint Venture of Ultimate Holding Company- Kirloskar Ebara
Lo o . - 1,030.26
Pumps Limited- Bilf Discounting
Holding Company- Karad Projects and Motors Limited 19,033.84 8.674.02
Interest
4  |Loan 3,75,100.00 1,85,100.00
Holdlpg Company- Karad Projects and Motors Limited - Loan 3.00,000.00 R
Received
Holding Company- Karad Projects and Mators Limited - Loan 25.000.00 1,35.000.00
Repayment
Ultimate Holding company - Kirloskar Brothers Limited- L oan 50.100.00 50,100.00
Repayment
5 fnvestment in Equity Shares 9,018.77 -
Sunsure Solarpark Nineteen Private Limited- Associale of
; : 9,018.77 -
Ultimate Holding Company




The ¥othapur Steel Limited
Notes to Accounts:

Note 34:

Related Party Disclosures {Cont.)

C} Disclosure of related parties transactions

{Amounts in Thousand Rupees)

2024-25 2023-24
Sr. No. Nature of transaction/relationship/major parties
Amount Amount for Amount Amount for
Major parties * Major parties *
6 Key Management Personne!
i} Directors Sitting fees 240.00 360.00
Mr. Achyut Dhadphale 82.50 120.00
Mr. K. Taranath 52.50 115.00
Mr.Suresh Deshpande G67.50 87.50
Mr Rudrappa Mzhajan 37.50 37.50
ii) Managerial Remuneration
a) Mr. Rajkumar Assudani - MD 4.870.50 2,901.41
Short term employee benefits 4,352.11 2.901.41
Post employment benefits 411.66 -
QOther long term employee benefit 106.73 -
b) Avinash Yadav- CFO 1,131.67 368.12
Short term employee benefits 1,701.95 368.12
Posl employment benefits 29.72 -

Other long term employee benefit

" Maijor parties denote entities who account for 10% or more of the aggregate for that calegory of fransaction

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties - The sales lo and purchase from related parlies are made on terms equivalent
1o those that prevail in arms length transaction. Qutstanding balances at the year end are unsecured and interest free and settlement accurs

in cash.

{D) Amount due toffrom related parties

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

Sr No Nature of transaction/relationship/major parties Amount for Amount for
Amount Amount N \
Major parties Major parties

1 Unsecured Loan payable
Ultimate Holding company -~ Kirloskar Brothers Limited 9.414.02 0.414.02 9.514.02 9,514,02
{Interest free)
Uitimate Holding company - Kirloskar Brothers Limited 31,5627.77 31,627.77 81,527,177 81,527.77
Holding Company- Karad Projects and Mofors Limited 3,00,600.00 3.00,000.00 25,000.00 25,000.00

2 Trade Receivable
Ultimate Holding company - Kirloskar Brothers Limiled 6,811.13 6.811.13 9,774.19 9,774.19
Joint Veqture of Ullimate Holding Company- Kirloskar Ehara 282977 282077 _ A
Pumps Limited

3 Advance Received
Ullimate Holding company - Kirloskar Brothers Limited 1,98,697.02 1,99,.697.02 1,76,153.67 1.76,153.67
Joint Ven_lu_re of Ultimate Holding Company- Kirloskar Ebara ) ) 1,520.49 1,520.49
Pumps Limited

4 Trade Payable
Ultlimate Holding company - Kirloskar Brothers Limited 8,36,491.39 8,36,491.3% 1 7,00,426.34 7,00,426.34
Holding Company- Karad Projects and Motars Limited - - 5,082.12 508212
Jaint Ven_&u_re of Ultimate Holding Company- Kirloskar Ebara 226.05 396.05 293 13 22313
Pumps Limited

5 Remuneration Payabie
Mr. Rajkumar Assudani- Managing Director 291.02 291.02 246.27 246.27
Mr. Avinash Yadav- CFO - - 117.66 117.66

HoA




The Kolhapur Steel Limited
Notes to Accounts:
(Amounts in Thousand Rupees)

Note 356 Detaifs of provisions and movements in each class of provisions.

Particulars Compensated Product Warranty
Absences
Carrying amount as at 1 April 2023 5,857.02 661.64
Add: Provision during the year 2023-24 1,152.27 2,047.60
Add: Unwinding of discounts - -
Less: Amount utitised during the year 2023-24 458.51 2,216.34
Less: Amouni reversed during the year 2023-24 - -
Carrying amount as at 31 March 2024 6,550.78 492.90
Add: Provisicn during the year 2024-25 1,145.36 2.275.99
Add: Unwinding of discounts - -
Less: Amount utilised during the year 2024-25 1,193.11 402.7¢
Less: Amount reversed during the year 2024-25 - -
Carrying amount as at 31 March 2025 6,503.63 2,366.19

Compensated absences

The cost of the Jleave encashment and the present value of the leave encashment obligation are determined
using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions thal may differ from
actual developments in the fulure. These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases
and mortality rates.

Provision for warranty

Provision for warranty is made for estimated warranty claims in respect of producis sold, which are under
warranty at the end of the reporling period. These claims are expected fo be seifted as per schedule of
warrandy i.e. upto 18 months. Management records the provision based on the historical wasranfy claims
information and any recent frends $hat may suggest future claims could differ historical amount.




The Kolhapur Steel Eimited
Notes to Accounts:
{Amounts in Thousand Rupees)

Note 36: Fair Value of financial assets and liabilities

As per assessments made by the management fair values of alt financial instruments carried at amortised costs {excepl as
specified befow) are not materially different fram their carrying amounts since they are either short term nature or the interest
rates appticable are equal lo the current marke! rate of interest.

The Company has not performed a fair valuation of its investiment in unquated ordinary shares which are classified as FVTOCH
{refer Nole 4), as the Company believes that impact of change on account of fair value is insignificant.

Carrying value
Sr.No Particulars
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Financial Assets
a) |Carried at Fair Value - Level -3
Unquoted Investment 9,018,77 -
b) |Carried at amortised cost - Levei -2
Trade receivable 38,656.20 63.478.73
Security deposils 2.026.65 1,264.65
Cther financial assets 2,461.69 2,511.36
Cash and cash equivalent 53.63 4,204 .47
(her bank balances - -
43,198.17 71,459.21
Financial Liabilities
¢} |Carried at amortised cost- Level -2
Non-current borrowings 44 977.28 1,12,060.50
Current borrowings 16,289.08 17,156.93
Current borrowings - Inferest free Loan frem Ultimate Holding 9.414.02 8.514.02
Company
Current Maturities of Non-current borrowings 67,073.22 85,545 45
Current Borrowings - Unsecured Loans- Holding Company 3,00,000.00 25,000.00
Lease Liabitily 1,377.89 1.616.99
Trade payable 8,66,339.91 8,06,554.46
Total other financial tiabilities 38,936.93 30,785.73
13,45,408.33 10,88,224.09




The Kothapur Steel Limited
Notes to Accounts:

{Amounts in Thousand Rupees

Note 37 : Financial risk management policy and objectives

Company's principal financial liabiliies, comprise foans and borrowings, trade and other payabies, and financial guarantee
conlracts. The main purpose of these financial liabifities is to finance company's cperations and lo provide guarantees to support
its operations. Company's principat financial assets comprises trade and other receivables, security deposits and cash and cash
equivalents, that derive direclly from its operations.

Comgpany is exposed to certain risks which includes market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Risk Management commillee of the company oversees the management of these risks. This commillee is accountable to audit
commillee of the board. This process provides assurance to the company's senior management that company's financial risk-
taking activities are governed by the appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and
managed in accordance with company’s policies and risk appelite.

The policies for managing these risks are summarised below.

1) Credit Risk

Credil risk is the risk that counterparly will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or cusiomer contract, leading to a
financiat Joss. The company is exposed {c credit risk from is operating aclivities (primarily trade receivables) and from its
financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial
instrumnents.

Company uses expected credif loss model for assessing and providing for credit risk. Refer note 36a for expected cradit loss
model analysis.

a) Trade receivabie

Customer credil risk is managed through the company's eslablished policy, precedures and control relating to customer credit
risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credil
limits are defined in accordance wilh this assessment, Qutslanding cuslomer receivables are regularly monitored and any
shipments to major customers are generally covered by letters of credit, Bill discounting (without recourse) or olher forms of
credi insurance. Trade receivables are non inlerest bearing and are generally on, 30 days te 90. days credil term. The cempany
has no coencentraticn of risk as customer base in widely distributed both economically and gecgraphically. The ageing analysis of
trade receivable as on reporling date is as follows

Neither past Past due but not impaired

Particulars due nor Total
impaired L;;:S(:::: 181 to 365 days above 365 days
As at 31 March 2025 31,725.38 4,073.1¢ 1,357,860 17,079.69 54,235.77

As at 31 March 2024 51,248.47 784.06 3.763.11 10,549.13 66,344.77




The Kolhapur Steel Limited
Notes to Accounts:
{Amounts in Thousand Rupees
b} Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the company's treasury department in accordance
with company's policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned
to each counlerparty. Company monilors ralings, credit spread and financial strength of its counter parties. Based on ongoing
assessmenl company adjust it's exposure o various counterparties. Company's maximum exposure to credil risk for the
components of statement of financial position is the carrying amount as disclosed in Nole 6 ang 9.

2} Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk thal the company may not be able o meel it's present and future cash flow and coliateral obligations
without incurring unacceptable losses. Company's objective is te, at afl time maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet it's cash
ard coliateral requirements. Company closely monitors its liguidily position and deploys a robust cash management system. it
mainiains adequate sources of financing including overdrafi, debt from domestic and international banks at optimised cost.

The table summarizes the maturity profile of company's financial liabilities based on contracluai undiscounled payments

As at 31 March 2025
Particulars 2‘::232? On demand |Less than 180 days| 181 to 365 days | above 365 days | Total
interest bearing 4.28,339.56 |  16,289.08 2,72772.73 94,306.49 44.977.28 | 4.28,330.58
borrowings
Non interesi bearing 9.414.02 9.414.02 N . - 9.414.02
borrowings T T o
Other liabifities 41.314.82 . 40.065.48 131.56 1114791 41,314.62
;;‘;Z;”" oter 8,66.330.91 |  43.567.62 1,33.435.82 2.69,250.36 4,30,076.91 | 8,66,330.91
As at 31 March 2024
Particulars Ca;rir:royl.::? On demand {lLess than 180 days| 181 tc 365 days | above 365 days Total
Interest bearing 2,30,752.88 | 17.166.93 67.772.72 42.772.73 1,42,050.50 | 2,39,752.88
borrowings
Non Interest bearing 951402 951402 . . - 9,514.02
borrowings o T T
Other liabilities 3540572 ; 30,905.28 119,56 137788 | 3240072
;;?gilznd other B,06,564.46 | 47,039.30 4,02,556.11 1,81,856.63 1,75,100.42 | 8,06.554.46

3) Market Risk

Markel risk is the risk Lhat the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluciuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk such as equily price risk and
commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, FVTOC! investments.

Comgany's activilies expose il to variety of financial risks, including effect of changes in foreign currency exchange rate and
interest rate.
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The Koihapur Steef Limited

Notes to Accounts:
{Amounts in Thousand Rupees

a} Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will ffuctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.,

Company manages its inlerest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rale loans and borrowings.

The company does nol account for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or toss.
Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profil or loss.

b} Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will Auctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rate. Company transacts business in local currency INR and in different foreign currencies. Company has
foreign currency trade receivables. trade payables, advances, deposits and therefore is exposed to foreign exchange risk. The
company has net hedged it's foreign currency exposure by derivative instruments or olherwise. Below is the sensitivity analysis
for the foreign currency risk.

Amount in Foreign Currency Amount in INR

Particulars Currency 312!\:;;ch 31;;;1;0!1 21 March 2025 31 March 2024
Financial Asseis
Trade Receivables EUR 122.28 126.38 11,264.34 11,368.51
Less Provision EUR 122.28 11.264.34 -
Batance EUR - 126.38 - 11,366.51
Financial liabilities
Trade Payables B - - -

Currency wise net exposure {Assels-Liabilities)

Particulars

Amount in Foreign Currency

Amount in INR

31 March
2025

31 March
2024

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

EUR

126.38

11,368.51
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The Kolhapur Steet Limited
Notes to Accounts:
{Amounts in Thousand Rupees)

Note 38: Caplital management

For the purpose of the company’s capital managemend, capital includes issued equity capital, share premism
and alf other equity reserves. The primary objective of the company's capital management is o maximise the
shareholder value.

The company manages its capital structure and makes adiusiments in light of changes in economic
conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shargholders or issue new
shares. Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by fotal capital plus net
debt. Company's policy is to keep the gearing ratio between 20% and 40%. however, due to adverse scenario
in the industry, company is not able to achieve this percentage. Further, company wishes to bring the range
between 20% to 40% in the near future. The company includes within net debt, interest bearing ivans and
berrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents, excluding discontinued operations.

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Loans and borrowings 4,37,753.60 2,49,266.91
Less: Cash and Bank Balance 53.63 4,204.47
Net debt 4,37,699.97 2,45,062.44
Equity {10,36,462.35) {8,38,640.07)
Capital and net debt (5,98,762.38) (5,93,577.63)
Gearing % -73.10% -41.29%

Note 39 : DISCLOSURE iN RESPECT OF MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES

The company has amounts due to suppliers under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006 [ MSMED Act] as al 31 March 2025, the disclosure pursuant to the said Acl is as under

Particuiars As at 31 March 2425 As at 31 March 2024
Tcta‘! outstandmg amourd in respect of micro, small and 10.882.36 42.985.46
medium enterprises
Other disclosures in respect of micro and small enterprises
Prircipal amount due and remaining unpaid - 36,101.49
Interest due on above and unpaid - 1,421.34
Inlerest paid
Payment made beyond appointment day 1,17,975.16 1,60,278.20
Interest due and payable for the pericd of delay 3.815.23 7.478.03
!nterest accrued and remaining unpaid {excluding 3.815.23 7.478.03
interest accrued for earlier years)
Amount .of Further interest remaining due and payable in 3,815.23 7,478.03
succeeding years

Note 40 : Segment reporting

Company operales in single segment as business of Steel and Alloy casting. The Executive Management
Committee monitors the operating results of entire company as whole for the purpose of making decistons
about resource allocation and performance assessment,

Revenues from three customers exceeding 10% of the enlity's revenues amounted to Rs. 28,996.66
Thousand, Rs. 97,949.65 Thousand and Rs. 47,934 .13 Thousand, These revenues were earmed in the single
reportable segment.




The Kothapur Steel Limited
Notes to Accounts:
{Amounts in Thousand Rupees)

MNote 41 :

a) Corporate social responsibility expenditures

{a) Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year is Ks. Nil- (Rs, Nit in F.Y: 2023-24}
{b) Amount spent by the Company during the year is Rs. Nil/- (Rs. NIL in F.Y: 2023-24)

b) Note on Charge Creation

The company has registered all Details of Registration or safisfaction of charge with ROC within the prescribed time
from the execution of document.

c} Foreign Exchange Earnings
The FOB Value of Export are Rs. 7,965.00 Thousand (During FY 2023-24 Rs. 30,685.00 Thousand)
d) Transactions with Struck off Companies : (Refer below Table).

As at 31st March 2025

Relationship with the struck

Name of struck off Nature of transactions with struck Balance ;
X off company, if any, to be
company off company outstanding disclosed
NA investments in securities NiL NA
NA Receivables NiL NA
NA Payables NiL NA
NA Shares held by struck off Company NIL NA
NA Other lou:standmg balances (to be NIL NA
specified}

As at 31st March 2024

Relationship with the struck

Name of struck off Nature of transactions with struck Balance .
) off company, if any, to be
company off company outstanding disclosed
NA Invastmants in securities NI NA
NA Receivables NIL NA
NA Payables NIL NA
NA Shares heid by struck off Company NIL NA
NA Othef 'ou{standmg balances {to be NIL NA
specified}

e) Wilful Defauiter
The company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any banks/Financial Institutions.

f) Crypto Currency or Virtual Curreancy
The company has nof traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency




The Kothapur Steef Limited
Notes to Accounts:
{Amounts in Thousand Rupees)}

Note 41 Continue..

g} Note on Undisclosed Income If any

The Company does not have any transaction not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or
survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

Adso none of the previously unrecorded income and related assets have been recorded in the books of account during
the year.

h) Disclosure related to reporting under rule 11(e) of the companies {(audit and auditors) rules, 2014, as
amended.

1) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the company to or any other person or entities, including foreign entities
("Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly fend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

2} No funds have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entities {“Funding
Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Comipany shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, fend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

1} Exceptional items

During the financial year the Company has declared a Voluntary Retirement Scheme (VRS). Under this scheme 22
workers opted for voluntary retirement. The total cost of Rs 17,722.80 thousand associated with these retirements has
been presented as an exceptional item in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Note 42: Disclosure related to Audit Trail.

The access to the database for accounting software is restricted only to few users depending on Company’s operating
and business needs after appropriately designing the internal controls and ensuring the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

Audit trait function for database level is disabled by default in SAP. Enabling that feature, can affect the performance
of SAP system as whola. Considering above facts, management has not enabled audit frail at database level. Also in
respect of maintenance of property, plant and equipment and inventory valuation of WIP records wherein the
accounting software did not have audit trail feature enabled throughout the year,

The Company uses servicas of third-party service provider {ADP India Private Limited) for payroli processing. Further,
outsourced vendor is 1SO 9001:2013 and 18O 27001:2013 certified. Rule A.12.4, of 1SO 27001:2013 requires,
maintaining the audit trail of all events / logs including the changes in payroll products — user access controls, change
management, etc. Auditors of third party service provider had verified these controls and issue certificate for ISO
standards.

Further, there is no direct integration between third party payroll system and TKSL accounting system. Processed
payroll data received from third party service provider, is duly verified by TKSL's internal team before accounting the

same,

Above mentioned does not impact the internal control environment of the Company.
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The Kolhapur Steel Limited
Notes to Accounts:

{(Amounts in Thousand Rupees)

Note 44: DISCLOSURE iN RESPECT OF IND AS 116, ‘LEASES'

Particulars

As at 31 March

As at 31 March

2025 2024
Opening right-to-use asset 1,510.31 1.789.14
Net addition / {deletion ) during the year - -
Depreciation charged during the year {278.70) (278.83)
Closing right-to-use asset 1,231.61 1,510.31

As at 31 March

As at 31 March

Particulars 2025 2024

Cpening lease Habitity 1.616.89 1,834.28
MNet addition / (deletion } during the year - -
Add Finance Cost 144.90 168,70
Leas_e pf'aymenls inciuding lease (384.00) (384.00)
termination

Closing lease liability 1,377.89 1,616.99
Non-Curent 1,114.79 1,377.88
Current 263.10 239.11

Contractual maturities of lease

paymenls
Particulars As at 31 March | As at 31 March
2025 2024
Less than one year 263.10 235.11
Between 1-2 years 289.50 263.10
More than 2 years 82520 1,114.78

1. The expenses relaled 1o payments not included in the measurement of lease iiability and recognised as
expensas in the profit and loss during the year- low value lease Rs, 222,50 thousand (PY Rs.Nil)

2. Total cash outfiow for fease arrangements during the year is Rs.384.00 Thousand

3. Company has no! enlered into any sublease arrangements,

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets at the end of the reporting period by class of underlying asset.

Depreciation For the year

Addition during

Carrying Amount

Class of Asset the year
As at 31 As at 31
202425 2023-24 | 2024-25| 2023-24 |y reh 2025 | March 2024
Plant and Machinery 278.7¢ 278,83 - 1,231.61 1.510.3%




The Kothapur Steel Limited
Notes to Accounts:

Note 45:; Going Concern
Financial Position of TKSL and Plans to overcome the current financial stress:

The company has taken various strategic iniliatives in last couple of years which have resulted in significant orders value in hand and in
addition order expecled worth of Rs 1,64,000 Thousand in the 1st quanter which is already technical and commercial evaluated and
confirmation received from various customers, which will ensure sustainable revenue growth in upcoming years.

Though the company reduce its top line, however the loss is also reduce as compare to earlier years. It is still to recover the entire fixed cost
in a current financial year. However, with the in-house RT facility, newly appointed skilled manpower and focused approach on cost
reduclion, the company will be able o recover the enlire fixed cost gradually in the upcoming guarters. The Company successiuily
implemented the VRS scheme and partially reduce employee cost which will contribute to reduce loses.

The company is also working on the revival of the customer base and adding new territories to increase the market participation and improve
in the averall cashflow and financials.

Considering ali the above strategic initiatives and urge 1o improve the market penetration which will result in significant growth in business
company is confident to run the business on a going concern basis consistently in future years.

Also, the Uitimate Holding Company (Kirdoskar Brothers Limited} is fully commitied to support the Company o meetl all its financial liabililies
and in this regard the management of the Uitimate Hotding Company has issued a comfor/support letier.

Based on the above scenario, the company has prepared the financials on Going Concern basis.

Note 46: Other Disclosures

a} The Company is in the process of merging with holding company Karad Projects and Motors Limited. This proposed merger scheme is
subject to all applicable statulory and regulatory approvals. Necessary application is submitted with NCLT,

b) During the year Company has changed its register address from "Pune Bangatore Highway, Shiroli (Pulachi), Taluka - Hatkanangale,
Kolhapur ~ 416 122" to “Yamuna, Survey No. 98/(3-7), Plot No. 3, Baner, Baner Gaon, Pune, Haveli, Maharasitra, India, 411045"

¢) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 {45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

d) As required under section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has appointed a Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Mr. Ananta Das
with the effect from 21 April, 2025 in piace of the then CFO Mr. Avinash Yadav, who resigned from the positien of CFO of the Company with
effect from the closing hours of 24 December, 2024

e} Previous Years figures are rearranged and regrouped wherever necessary

As per our repori of even date attached

For SHARP & TANNAN ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

FRN- 108983W

Pramod Bhise' )
Piace - Pune

Membership No. (F) - 047751

Place - Pune
Date: April 21, 2025

Rajkumar Assudani
~\Managing Director
{ % 1DIN: 10254310

400083W /X

A
Ananta Das
Chief Finance Officer
Date: April 21, 2025

For and on behaif of the Board of Director,
Yo ij

Ravindra Samant
Director
DIN:07002226
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Gaurav Deshmukh ° '
Company Secretary
Date: April 21, 2025
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